
Big Hollow School District #38 Ingleside, IL  60041

REGULAR BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING MINUTES

Monday, June 14, 2021

1. Call to Order and Roll Call:
The regular meeting of the Board of Education was called to order at 6:00 p.m. on Monday,
June 14, 2021.

Roll Call:
The following members were in attendance:  Bennett, Dollinger, Kueter, Lyons, Pedersen, Plescia
The following members were absent:  Cernuska
The following administration was present:  Gold

2. Motion to move to Closed Session:
A motion was made by Kueter and seconded by Dollinger to move to closed session at 6:01 pm.
Motion carried.

Aye:  Kueter, Dollinger, Bennett, Lyons, Pedersen, Plescia
Nay:  None

3. Resume to Open Session:
Open session began at 6:58 p.m.
The following members were in attendance:  Bennett, Dollinger, Kueter, Lyons, Pedersen, Plescia
The following members were absent: Cernuska
The following administration were present:  Gold, Biancalana, Hetrovicz, Janusz, King,
McCulley, Pittman
The meeting was live streamed.

4. Pledge of Allegiance:
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

5. Added Items/Approval of the Agenda:
A motion was made by Kueter and seconded by Dollinger to approve the agenda with the
addition of two new hires and approval of Dr. King stipend for Interim Middle School Principal.
Motion carried.

Aye:  All
Nay:  None

Exhibit 1



6. Accomplishment Recognition
● The administration honored the following individuals who have been nominated by staff

and selected by the administration for the following awards:
○ Student of the Month: The April Student of the Month was not able to attend our

May meeting and was honored at the June Board Meeting. Kendall Michael, 1st
Grader was nominated by her teacher Mrs. Salazar as well as paraprofessional,
Kerry Hubbard.  Kendall is polite, well behaved, kind and sweet!  She greets her
fellow classmates with a smile on her face and always uses manners.  She follows
STAR expectations and encourages others to do so as well.

○ May Student of the Month:  Emily Stacy, 8th Grader, was nominated by Mrs. Dee
for her dedication and leadership qualities.  Mrs. Dee made mention of her talents
as well as her being a role model.

○ May Employee of the Month: Cindy Roller, Elementary Special Education
Teacher.  Ms. Roller was nominated by a number of elementary teachers
for being amazing!  Cindy is always cool, calm and collected.  Her
classroom runs like a well oiled machine and the students are always
having fun and learning at the same time.  She advocates for her students,
encourages them to grow by setting expectations and supporting them as
they meet them.

7. Board member “Code of Conduct” Review:
Item #6: “I will encourage and respect free expression of opinion by my fellow board members
and will participate in board discussions in an open, honest, and respectful manner, honoring
differences of opinion or perspective.”

8. Approve Consent Agenda Items:
A motion was made by Plescia and seconded by Kueter to approve the consent agenda items as
presented.
Motion carried.

Aye:  Plescia, Kueter, Dollinger, Lyons, Pedersen, Bennett
Nay:  None

9. Public Comments:
No public comments were presented.

10. Superintendent’s Report:
a. Pandemic Response Update

Mr. Gold shared with the board; pandemic-related topics, such as possible changes to the
quarantine rules, ISBE resolution and SHIELD testing. Remote learning will need to be
provided to students that fall within two categories: those not eligible for the vaccine and
those that are under quarantine order.  There will be more information coming this
summer.

b. Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS)
Dr. King presented to the board the MTSS Handbook as well as the MTSS meeting

Exhibit 1



calendar for the 2021-2022 school year.  She shared with the board the implementation of
a zero hour at middle school for the upcoming school year to those students that are
struggling and have schedules that do not allow them to utilize EPIC, students will be
invited to attend this program.  The MTSS is working towards universalizing PreK-8th
Grade programs in Tier II and Tier III as well as providing the appropriate support to
students.

c. Board Meeting Dates for SY 2021-2022
A discussion was had by board members on the following practices for board meetings:
*Continue to start open session immediately following the end of closed session
*Continue to live stream board meetings
*Continue to hold Board Meetings in the Cafeteria
It was agreed that all of the above will continue as we begin the 2021-2022 school year.

d. Adoption of the 2021-2022 Budget Calendar
The tentative budget for SY21-22 will be presented during the Monday, August 9, 2021
Board Meeting. According to the Illinois School Code, the budget will need to be on
display in our office for thirty (30) days prior to the board adopting the final budget. All
public school budgets must be approved by September 30th of each year. The budget will
be on display at the District office by August 5, 2021.

A motion was made by Dollinger and seconded by Bennett to approve the budget
calendar as outlined below:

Thursday, August 5, 2021 – Local ad appears in the Daily Herald regarding thirty-day
notice of budget on display.

Monday, August 9, 2021 – Board approves Tentative Budget for SY21-22.

Thursday, August 5, 2021 through Monday, September 13, 2021 – Budget on public
display at the District office.

Monday, September 13, 2021 – Board adopts budget for 2021-2022 school year.

Motion carried.

Aye:  Dollinger, Bennett, Pedersen, Lyons, Kueter, Plescia
Nay:  None

e. 8th Grade Graduation Ceremony
A brief discussion was had on whether or not to continue the tradition of holding 8th
Grade Graduation at the McHenry Outdoor Theater. It was agreed upon to continue this
with a few minor changes to what is provided and the time of the program.

f. Insurance Update
An exhibit showing the updated 2021-2022  property/casualty and workers’
compensation premiums. In summary, the total cost for these coverages has increased
from $156,190 to $197,603.  Mr. Gold shared with the board that the majority of this
increase comes from workman’s compensation claims.

Exhibit 1



11. Other Action Items:
a. May Employment Report

A motion was made by Plescia and seconded by Pedersen to approve the May
employment report with the additions of Vicki Steward, 3rd grade teacher and Sabrina
Fortunski, 3rd grade teacher.
Motion carried.

Aye:  Plescia, Pedersen, Lyons, Bennett, Kueter, Dollinger
Nay:  None

b. Extra Curricular Assignments for 2021-2022
An exhibit showing a listing of the extra-curricular positions for the current school year
as well as recommendations for the 2021-2022 school year were presented to the board.
It was noted that the open positions should be made known to parents.
A motion was made by Kueter and seconded by Plescia to approve the listing of the
extra-curricular positions for the current school year as well as recommendations for the
2021-2022 school year.
Motion carried.

Aye:  Kueter, Plescia, Pedersen, Bennett, Lyons, Dollinger
Nay:  None

c. Certification of Hazardous Bus Conditions
The Illinois School Code requires that the Board of Education annually review areas
within 1½ miles of school where free bus transportation is provided because conditions
are such that walking constitutes a serious hazard. Currently, five such areas have been
approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation:
● Heading east on W. Nippersink Rd. from the entrance of Big Hollow Middle School
● Heading west on W. Nippersink Rd. from the entrance of Big Hollow Middle School
● Heading north on Fish Lake Rd. from the entrance of Big Hollow

Primary/Elementary Schools
● Heading south on Fish Lake Rd. from the entrance of Big Hollow

Primary/Elementary Schools
● Heading west on Molidor Rd. from the entrance of Big Hollow Primary/Elementary

Schools

A motion was made by Pedersen and seconded by Plescia that the Board certify that the
hazardous conditions in these areas remain unchanged and that walking continues to
constitute a serious hazard to students due to vehicular traffic.
Motion carried.

Aye:  All
Nay:  None

d. Gavin-BHSD intergovernmental agreement for shared management/employee costs of \
the food service program

Exhibit 1



An exhibit of the intergovernmental agreement was presented to the board.

A motion was made by Bennett and seconded by Kueter to accept the intergovernmental
agreement for shared management/employee costs of the food service program
Motion carried.

Aye:  Bennett, Kueter, Lyons, Pedersen, Plescia, Dollinger
Nay:  None

e. Transportation agreement with St. Bede Catholic School
A contract was presented to the board for approval of the renewal agreement between
BHSD38 and St. Bede Catholic School for transportation services.
A motion was made by Dollinger and seconded by Bennett to approve the transportation
contract with St. Bede Catholic School.
Motion carried.

Aye:  Dollinger, Bennett, Kueter, Lyons, Pedersen, Plescia
Nay:  None

f. Administrative Assignments for 2021-2022
● Christine Arndt - Assistant Superintendent
● Venette Biancalana - Elementary School Principal
● Kira DeNovo - SPED Coordinator
● Michelle Hetrovicz-  Director of Curriculum & Instruction
● Lenayn Janusz - Primary School Principal
● Victorene King - Director of Data, Assessment & Accountability/ Interim Middle

School Principal
● Matthew McCulley - Director of Technology
● Stephanie Meek - Middle School Assistant Principal
● Sunny Morley - Elementary School Assistant Principal
● Rachel Mullen - Middle School Assistant Principal
● Erin Pittman - Director of Student Services

A motion was made by Pedersen and seconded by Bennett to approve the Administrative
Assignments for the 2021-2022 school year.
Motion carried.

Aye:  All
Nay:  None

g. Appointment of a Treasurer for the 2021-2022 school year and the corresponding School
Treasurer’s Bond
A contract from DyoPath as well as the School Treasurers Bond that will be secured
through Liberty Mutual Insurance Company for a total of $5,000,000 was exhibited to the
Board of Education.

Exhibit 1



A motion was made by Kueter and seconded by Dollinger to accept the contract from
DyoPath to provide business office services once per month, which will include work as
the District Treasurer and assistance in bank account reconciliation each month.
Motion carried.

Aye:  Kueter, Dollinger, Lyons, Bennett, Pedersen, Plescia
Nay:  None

h. 2nd reading the adoption of the Amplify Science curriculum for grades 5 - 8
A memo was exhibited to the Board from Dr. Michelle Hetrovicz who shared during the
May Board Meeting the process and timelines for this curriculum adoption.
A motion was made by Bennett and seconded by Dollinger to approve the Adoption of
the Amplify Science Curriculum on 2nd reading for grades 5-8.
Motion carried.

Aye:  Bennett, Dollinger, Lyons, Pedersen, Plesica, Kueter
Nay:  None

12. Resignations Accepted:
● Accepted resignation from Scottt Whipple, Middle School Principal, effective June 30,

2021.
● Accept a resignation from Norma Velazquez, Food Service Worker, effective May 28,

2021.
● Accept a resignation from Maria Rosanna Garcia Lardizabal, Middle School

Paraprofessional, effective May 28, 2021.
● Accept a resignation from Laranda Parker from her Middle School Lunch Monitor

position, effective May 28, 2021.
● Accept resignation from Ashley Austin, Elementary ELL Teacher, effective at the end of

the 2020-2021 school year.
● Accept resignation from Stephanie Malinger, 3rd Grade Teacher, effective at the end of

2020-2021 school year.
● Accept resignation from Megan Paul, 5th-8th Grade Special Education Teacher, effective

June 2, 2021.
● Accept resignation from Howard Hill, Bus Driver, effective June 12, 2021.

13. Informational Items:
a. Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Requests

A FOIA request received on May 17, 2021; May 28, 2021; and June 2, 2021 were
presented to the board.  No comments or questions.

b. Monthly Reports
The Monthly Administrator Report and Administrator meeting agenda from May were
presented to the board.

c. The next regularly scheduled Board Meeting will take place on Monday, July 12,
2021 with closed session beginning at 6:00 p.m and open session beginning immediately
after.

14. Motion to move to Closed Session:

Exhibit 1



Not needed

15. Return to Open Session:
Not needed.

16. Take any necessary action following closed session regarding minutes, employment of personnel,
resignations, terminations or leaves of absence:
None

17. Adjournment:
A motion was made by Kueter and seconded by Plescia to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 p.m.
Motion carried.

Aye:  All
Nay:  None

_________________________________ __________________________________
Board of Education President Board of Education Secretary
Big Hollow School District #38 Big Hollow School District #38

Exhibit 1



Big Hollow School District 38 Combined Balance Sheet June 2021 BALANCE SHEET

EDUCATION OPER. & DEBT SVC TRANS. SS/MED/IMRF CAPITAL PROJ WORKING TORT
FUND MAINT. FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND CASH FUND  FUND TOTAL

(10) (20) (30) (40) (50/51) (60) (70) (80) ALL FUNDS
 

A S S E T S
Cash & Investments
Imprest Fund 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000
Cash in Bank BMO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash in Bank Win Trust Land of Lakes Bank 4,326,733 3,000,203 2,408,195 810,100 221,897 762,083 1,188,879 39,800 12,757,889
PMA Investment 611,723 446,268 244,388 113,623 39,374 112,191 177,151 3,882 1,748,600
PMA Savings Deposit Account 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
     TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 4,940,455 3,446,471 2,652,583 923,724 261,272 874,274 1,366,029 43,681 14,508,489

Due From Education Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
    TOTAL ASSETS 4,940,455 3,446,471 2,652,583 923,724 261,272 874,274 1,366,029 43,681 14,508,489

L I A B I L I T I E S
Tax Anticipation Warrants Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable 93,364 -20,003 0 -43,748 0 -3,690 0 0 25,922
Due To Working Cash Fund 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0
    TOTAL LIABILITIES 93,364 -20,003 0 -43,748 0 -3,690 0 0 25,922

 
YTD Revenue 15,778,553 1,418,195 4,940,862 1,435,903 523,615 339,614 100,552 154,742 24,692,035
Sale of Assets 0
YTD Expenditures -15,706,617 -1,291,613 -4,869,778 -1,064,664 -485,120 -255,212 0 -156,190 -23,829,195
YTD Excess/ (Deficiency) 71,936 126,582 71,084 371,239 38,494 84,402 100,552 -1,448 862,840
 
Beginning Fund Balance 07/01/20 4,961,883 3,299,886 2,581,499 508,736 222,777 793,562 1,265,478 45,129 13,678,951
Ending Fund Balance 5,033,819 3,426,468 2,652,583 879,975 261,271 877,964 1,366,029 43,681 14,541,791

    TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BAL. 4,940,455 3,446,471 2,652,583 923,724 261,271 874,274 1,366,029 43,681 14,508,489

   

Board of Education President Date Board of Education Secretary Date

Big Hollow School District 38 Big Hollow School District 38

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow District #38
Bank Balances

6/30/2021

Ledger/ Outstanding Outstanding Adjusting Adjusted
Statement Deposits Checks Entry Balance

Education (10) ( 4,326,732.60) ( 4,326,732.60) 
Building (20) ( 3,000,203.13) ( 3,000,203.13) 
Bond & Interest (30) ( 2,408,194.74) ( 2,408,194.74) 
Transportation (40) ( 810,100.16)   ( 810,100.16)    
IMRF/SS/MC Fund (50,51) ( 221,897.46)   ( 221,897.46)    
Capital Projects (60) ( 762,082.63)   ( 762,082.63)    
Working Cash (70) ( 1,188,878.71) ( 1,188,878.71) 
Tort (80) ( 39,799.67)     ( 39,799.67)      

( 12,757,889.10) ( -  )            ( -  )                 ( -  )                ( 12,757,889.10)

Bank of the Ozarks (0.00) (0.00)
PMA Savings-11534-101 (0.00) (0.00)
PMA Max Class General Fund (11,897,431.22) (11,897,431.22)
PMA Max Tax Anticipation Warrants (0.00) (0.00)
State Bank of the Lakes (1,011,925.80) (151,467.92) (860,457.88)
Bancorp Bank (0.00) (0.00)

( 12,909,357.02) ( -  )            (116,701.85) (0.00) (12,757,889.10)
( (0.00)              

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

Education Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $9,014,064 $414,143 $4,983,862 $4,030,202 55%
State Sources $5,670,976 $505,392 $5,174,722 $496,254 91%
Federal Sources $938,380 $248,762 $1,211,644 ($273,264) 129%
Fees $10,000 $209 $21,952 ($11,952) 220%

Total Revenue $15,633,420 $1,168,506 $11,392,180 $4,241,240 73%
    

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $12,280,841 $993,967 $10,380,433 $1,900,408 85%
Benefits $1,418,920 $111,820 $1,216,373 $202,547 86%
Purchased Services $1,168,187 $92,837 $904,997 $263,190 77%
Supplies and Mat $1,281,434 $74,745 $954,373 $327,061 74%
Capital Outlay $10,000 $0 $0 $10,000 0%
Dues and Fees/Tuition $1,110,200 $33,736 $655,764 $454,436 59%
Non-Capital Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0
Transfers $3,500 $18,888 $18,888 ($15,388) 540%

Total Expenses  $17,273,082  $1,325,994  $14,130,827 $3,142,255 82%

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

Operations and Maintenance
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $1,485,000 $54,745 $823,161 $661,839 55%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Sources Sale of Land $0 $0 $0 $0)

Grant Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0)

Total Revenue $1,485,000 $54,745 $823,161 $661,839) 55%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $311,250 $23,756 $261,010 $50,240 55%
Benefits $19,595 $2,107 $22,264 ($2,669) 114%
Purchased Services $707,600 $36,011 $534,013 $173,587 75%
Supplies and Materials $541,300 $29,519 $364,796 $176,504 67%
Capital Outlay $21,000 $0 $19,616 $1,384 93%
Dues, Fees,Tuition $0) $0 $0 $0

Total Expenses  $1,600,745  $91,393  $1,201,698 $399,047 75%

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

Debt Service Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $5,096,500 $183,513 $2,753,605 $2,342,895 54%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenue $5,096,500 $183,513 $2,753,605 $2,342,895 54%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Purchased Services $1,000 $0 $928 $72) 93%
Principal and Interest $0 $0 $0) $0
Other Objects $4,868,851 $7,428 $4,868,850 $1 100%

Total Expenses $4,869,851 $7,428 $4,869,778 $73) 100%

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

Transportation Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $570,000 $20,904 $313,528 $256,472) 55%
State Sources $525,000 $0 $826,675 ($301,675) 157%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenue $1,095,000 $20,904 $1,140,203 ($45,203) 104%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $824,250 $67,552 $581,812 $242,438 71%
Benefits $44,375 $2,707 $26,271 $18,104 59%
Purchased Services $139,600 $1,433 $20,160 $119,440 14%
Supplies and Mat $113,300 $7,674 $43,542 $69,758 38%
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0
Other $336,200 $0 $324,934 $11,266) 97%

Total Expenses  $1,457,725  $79,365  $996,718 $461,007) 68%

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

IMRF/SS Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $496,550 $17,446 $308,208 $188,342 62%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenue $496,550 $17,446 $308,208 $188,342 62%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $0 $0 $0 $0 
Benefits $568,700 $42,331 $442,005 $126,695 78%
Purchased Services $0 $0 $0 $0 
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0 
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 
Dues and Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Expenses  $568,700  $42,331  $442,005 $126,695 78%

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

Capital Projects
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $39,000 $10 $281,250 ($242,250) 721%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Revenue $39,000 $10 $281,250 ($242,250) 721%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $0 $0 $0 $0 
Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 
Purchased Services $10,000 $0 $1,800 $8,200 18%
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0 
Capital Outlay $175,000 $0 $253,412 ($78,412) 145%
Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Expenses  $185,000 $0  $255,212 ($70,212) 138%

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

Working Cash Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $106,000 $3,740 $57,010 $48,990 54%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Revenue $106,000 $3,740 $57,010 $48,990 54%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $0 $0 $0 $0 .
Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 .
Purchased Services $0 $0 $0 $0 .
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0 .
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 .
Dues and Fees/Tuition $0 $0 $0 $0 .

Total Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 .

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

TORT FUND
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $144,700 $5,319 $79,732 $64,968) 55%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0.00)
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0.00)

Total Revenue $144,700 $5,319 $79,732 $64,968) 55%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget
Salary $0 $0 $0 $0
Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0
Purchased Services $157,000 $0 $156,190 $810 99%
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0
Dues and Fees/Tuition $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenses  $157,000 $0  $156,190 $810 99%

Total All Funds

Exhibit 2



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report June 2021

Total All Funds
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $16,951,814 $699,820 $9,600,356 $7,351,458 57%
State Sources $6,195,976 $505,392 $6,001,397 $194,579) 97%
Federal Sources $938,380 $248,762 $1,211,644 ($273,264) 129%
Other Sources Sale of Land $0 $0 $0 $0)
Fees $10,000 $209 $21,952 ($11,952) 220%
Maintenance Grant $0 $0 $0 $0)
Total Revenue $24,096,170 $1,454,183 $16,835,349 $7,260,821) 70%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $13,416,341) $1,085,276) $11,223,254) $2,193,087 84%
Benefits $2,051,590) $158,965) $1,706,912) $344,678 83%
Purchased Services $2,183,387) $130,281) $1,618,088) $565,299 74%
Supplies and Mat $1,936,034) $111,938) $1,362,711) $573,323 70%
Capital Outlay $206,000) $0) $273,028) ($67,028) 133%
Dues and Fees/Tuition $1,446,400) $33,736) $980,698) $465,702 68%
Transfers $3,500 $18,888 $18,888 ($15,388) 540%
Other Objects  $4,868,851 $7,428  $4,868,850 $1) 100%
Total Expenses  $26,112,103  $1,546,512  $22,052,429 $4,059,674) 84%

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
          

      

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Exhibit 2



Fund Fund # Accounts Payable 
Education 10 $664,414.16

O & M 20 $68,968.54

Debt Service 30

Transportation 40 $19,929.60

IMRF/SS 50 $43,115.50

Capitol Projects 60

Working Cash 70

TORT 80

Fire Prev/Safety 90

Totals $796,427.80

Board of Education Secretary Date

Big Hollow School District #38

Board of Education President Date

Big Hollow School District #38

Big Hollow School Distrcit #38

Accounts Payable Approval Form for July 12, 2021

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:1

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/03/2021     49603         -2,835.00 Jet Fast Printing In EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- Graduation Supp/Mat         -2,835.00

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/01/2021     49816             25.00 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

06/01/2021     49816         21,168.81 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

06/01/2021     49816            575.13 Illinois Dept Of Rev O & M/District Building- IL State Withholding

06/01/2021     49816          1,544.86 Illinois Dept Of Rev TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation - IL State With         23,313.80

ict

06/01/2021     49817          4,326.09 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49817            213.57 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49817            215.41 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49817          3,209.66 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49817            938.88 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49817             21.09 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49817             21.08 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49817          1,265.46 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49817             28.43 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49817             28.41 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49817            158.45 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49817            159.79 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions         10,586.32

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818         31,399.18 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818          1,550.05 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:2

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818          1,563.35 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818          2,023.52 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818            191.51 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818          9,184.40 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818            206.25 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49818            206.25 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49818            591.82 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818             13.29 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49818             13.29 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/01/2021     49818          1,297.73 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818             99.88 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49818            100.76 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions         48,441.28

mployee Deductions

06/01/2021     49819          3,771.41 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION FICA

06/01/2021     49819            669.93 United States Treasu O & M/District Building - FICA Withholding

06/01/2021     49819          2,162.15 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict

06/01/2021     49819          1,183.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

06/01/2021     49819             20.00 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Federal Withold

ict/Federal Tax

Withheld

06/01/2021     49819             50.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:3

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

ederal Tax Withheld

06/01/2021     49819         43,822.10 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

06/01/2021     49819          1,027.38 United States Treasu O & Building - Federal Withholding

M/District/Federal

Tax Withheld

06/01/2021     49819          2,017.81 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Federal Withold

ict/Federal Tax

Withheld

06/01/2021     49819          7,614.77 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION Medicare Withiheld

06/01/2021     49819            186.81 United States Treasu O & M/District Building- Medicare Withholding

06/01/2021     49819            535.84 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Medicare With

ict

06/01/2021     49819          6,603.49 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare - FICA Withholding

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

06/01/2021     49819          8,337.42 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare-Medicare Withheld         78,002.11

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

06/01/2021     49820          1,603.95 Wisconsin Dept Of Re EDUCATION/District EDUCATION WISC ST TAX

06/01/2021     49820            107.89 Wisconsin Dept Of Re TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation -WI State With          1,711.84

ict

06/10/2021     49821             20.09 Ace Hardware Home Ce O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat             20.09

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49822         11,935.59 Adlai E. Stevenson H EDUCATION/District/S ESSER2-- Vaccination POD         11,935.59

TAFF

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49823          2,893.93 Advanced Disposal O & M/District/CARE Sanitation Services          2,893.93

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SANITATION

SERVICES

06/10/2021     49824            528.00 Alexian Brothers Beh EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Health Pur Svc

LEMENTARY/PROFESSION

AL AND TECHNICAL

SER

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:4

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/10/2021     49824            462.00 Alexian Brothers Beh EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Health Pur Svc            990.00

LEMENTARY/PROFESSION

AL AND TECHNICAL

SER

06/10/2021     49825            282.05 Alpha Baking Co, Inc EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49825             45.08 Alpha Baking Co, Inc EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)            327.13

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827          1,684.30 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R PTO Designated Exp

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827            219.98 Amazon EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Classroom spec requst

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827            558.48 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827          1,691.72 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827            191.99 Amazon TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Supp/Mat

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827             24.38 Amazon EDUCATION/District/D Dir of Curr/Inst Sup/Mat

IRECTION OF CENTRAL

SUPPORT S/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827             37.95 Amazon TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Supp/Mat

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827             21.50 Amazon O & Dist--- O&M Pur Svc

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49827             29.81 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/EDU MS--- Library Supp/Mat

CATIONAL MEDIA

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:5

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827            514.03 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/EDU MS--- Library Books

CATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827            133.88 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827          1,053.00 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R PTO Designated Exp

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827            223.38 Amazon EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri--- Art Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827            285.76 Amazon O & Dist--- O&M Pur Svc

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49827             29.82 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/EDU MS--- Library Supp/Mat

CATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827             31.98 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49827             59.88 Amazon O & Dist--- O&M Pur Svc

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49827             64.48 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R PTO Designated Exp          6,856.32

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49828             25.53 Aramark Uniform & Ca EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49828             25.53 Aramark Uniform & Ca EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49828             25.53 Aramark Uniform & Ca EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)             76.59

OOD

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:6

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49829            952.00 Axess Transportation TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Homeless Pur Svc            952.00

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/OTHER

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES

06/10/2021     49830             30.60 Big Hollow PTO EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M             30.60

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49831            862.50 Carroll, Megan EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc            862.50

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49832             99.73 ComEd O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

06/10/2021     49832          1,896.44 ComEd O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

06/10/2021     49832          2,689.11 ComEd O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity          4,685.28

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

06/10/2021     49833          5,297.01 Connection's Day Sch EDUCATION/Connection SPED--- Private School Tuition

Day

SC-Palatine/Spec Ed

Private

Tuition/Private

Tuition

06/10/2021     49833          5,297.01 Connection's Day Sch EDUCATION/Connection SPED--- Private School Tuition         10,594.02

Day

SC-Palatine/Spec Ed

Private

Tuition/Private

Tuition

06/10/2021     49834          5,181.30 Connection's Academy EDUCATION/Connection SPED--- Private School Tuition          5,181.30

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:7

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

Day

SC-Palatine/Spec Ed

Private

Tuition/Private

Tuition

06/10/2021     49835            123.00 Cozzini Bros., Inc., EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)            123.00

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49836            150.00 CPI EDUCATION/District/S **SPED--- Admin Dues & Fees            150.00

PECIAL

EDUCATION/DUES &

FEES

06/10/2021     49837          2,640.00 Emeric Facility Serv O & Dist-- COVID Pur/Svc

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49837          2,640.00 Emeric Facility Serv O & Dist-- COVID Pur/Svc          5,280.00

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49838            547.50 Erickson, Douglas EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            547.50

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/10/2021     49839            175.58 Exceptional Learners EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49839          2,314.78 Exceptional Learners EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc          2,490.36

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49840            349.00 EZfund.Com EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat            349.00

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49841          3,380.00 GHA Technologies Inc EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49841         13,061.28 GHA Technologies Inc EDUCATION/District/D Tech-- COVID sup/mat         16,441.28

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:8

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49842          4,115.35 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49842            635.83 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49842             87.98 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Pur (Non-Prog)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49842          3,698.99 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49842            453.47 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49842            110.03 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Pur (Non-Prog)          9,101.65

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49843          6,539.59 Grant Township Highw TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Fuel          6,539.59

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/GASOLINE

06/10/2021     49844             52.68 Great Minds EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- Math Supp/Mat             52.68

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49845             13.96 Home Depot Credit Se TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Supp/Mat

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49845            318.00 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49845            499.00 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:9

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/10/2021     49845            198.80 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Custodial Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49845             17.26 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49845             27.97 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat          1,074.99

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49846            459.88 Hudson Energy Servic O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity            459.88

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

06/10/2021     49847            284.69 Ingleside Auto & Tir O & Vehicle Repairs and Maint            284.69

M/District/VEHICLE

SERVICING AND

MAINTENA/REPAIR AND

MAINTENANCE SERVICE

06/10/2021     49848            844.80 Integrated Systems C EDUCATION/District/O Tech--- Purch Svc            844.80

PERATIONS

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49849          1,015.30 Lake County Dept of O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Water/Sewer Services

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

06/10/2021     49849          1,015.30 Lake County Dept of O & Elem--- Water/Sewer Services

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

06/10/2021     49849          1,199.90 Lake County Dept of O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Water/Sewer Services          3,230.50

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:10

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

06/10/2021     49850          1,587.50 Lamination Depot EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat          1,587.50

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49851            304.00 Learning Without Tea EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat            304.00

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49852          4,275.00 Martin-Upton, Eileen EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc          4,275.00

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49853             20.44 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853              5.86 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853              4.24 Menards TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Supp/Mat

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853            109.66 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Custodial Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853             14.14 Menards O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853            207.86 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853            106.08 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:11

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/10/2021     49853            103.98 Menards O & Elem--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853           -109.00 Menards O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853            -39.96 Menards O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49853            110.48 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat            533.78

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49854            718.30 NCC - Peterson Produ O & M/District/CARE Dist--- COVID Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49854          1,246.00 NCC - Peterson Produ O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Custodial Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49854             25.22 NCC - Peterson Produ O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Custodial Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49854            587.75 NCC - Peterson Produ O & Elem--- Custodial Supp/Mat

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49854             23.33 NCC - Peterson Produ TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- COVID Supp/Mat)

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49854            718.30 NCC - Peterson Produ O & M/District/CARE Dist--- COVID Supp/Mat          3,318.90

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:12

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49855          1,400.00 Net56 O & M/District/CARE Internet Services (Net 56)          1,400.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/Net56

06/10/2021     49856          1,007.32 Nicor Gas O & Elem--- Natural Gas

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

06/10/2021     49856          1,121.64 Nicor Gas O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Natural Gas

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

06/10/2021     49856          1,582.43 Nicor Gas O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Natural Gas          3,711.39

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

06/10/2021     49857          6,600.00 Northwestern CTD EDUCATION/District/I Impr of Inst--- Northwestern          6,600.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49858            704.03 Oriental Trading Com EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49858             36.79 Oriental Trading Com EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat            740.82

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49859             43.50 Philippsen, Michelle EDUCATION/District/O FoodSvc--- Travel

THER FOOD

SERVICES/TRAVEL

06/10/2021     49859             43.50 Philippsen, Michelle EDUCATION/District/O FoodSvc--- Travel             87.00

THER FOOD

SERVICES/TRAVEL

06/10/2021     49860            500.00 Project Lead the Way EDUCATION/PRIMARY/IM Pri-- Impr of Inst. (staff)            500.00

PROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:13

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/10/2021     49861             75.00 Raney Day Services EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Suppt Svc (Raney)             75.00

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/OTHER

PURCHASED SERVICES

06/10/2021     49862            522.09 Schindler Elevator C O & Dist--- Elevator Inspection            522.09

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49863            808.80 School Specialty EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M            808.80

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49864          8,900.32 Spectrum Center Inc EDUCATION/District/P SPED-- Other Dist Contr Svcs          8,900.32

AYMENTS FOR SPECIAL

EDUCATION/PROFESSION

AL AND TECHNICAL

SER

06/10/2021     49865          1,152.00 Strand, Melissa Lynn EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc          1,152.00

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49866          1,250.00 The Public Face, LLC EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Staff          1,250.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49867          2,700.00 William & Mary Cente EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Staff          2,700.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/10/2021     49868          1,125.00 Wilson, Judith EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat          1,125.00

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/10/2021     49869            147.06 Yablun, Amanda O & M/District/CARE Dist--- COVID Supp/Mat            147.06

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/16/2021     49870          2,745.51 Ill Municipal Retire EDUCATION/District/B EDUCATION IMRF Deduction

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:14

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

enefit Accrual

06/16/2021     49870            477.49 Ill Municipal Retire O & Building - IMRF Withholding

M/District/Benefit

Accrual

06/16/2021     49870          1,599.24 Ill Municipal Retire TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict/Benefit Accrual

06/16/2021     49870          7,597.75 Ill Municipal Retire IMRF/District/Benefi IMRF - IMRF Withholding

t Accrual

06/16/2021     49870          3,056.90 Ill Municipal Retire EDUCATION/District/B EDUCATION IMRF Deduction

enefit Accrual

06/16/2021     49870            472.29 Ill Municipal Retire O & Building - IMRF Withholding

M/District/Benefit

Accrual

06/16/2021     49870            798.19 Ill Municipal Retire TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict/Benefit Accrual

06/16/2021     49870          6,818.02 Ill Municipal Retire IMRF/District/Benefi IMRF - IMRF Withholding         23,565.39

t Accrual

06/16/2021     49871             25.00 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

06/16/2021     49871         20,515.52 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

06/16/2021     49871            516.36 Illinois Dept Of Rev O & M/District Building- IL State Withholding

06/16/2021     49871            691.28 Illinois Dept Of Rev TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation - IL State With         21,748.16

ict

06/16/2021     49872          4,355.85 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49872             44.43 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49872            505.90 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49872          3,231.74 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49872            579.34 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49872             10.99 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49872             10.98 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49872            780.88 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:15

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49872             14.81 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49872             14.80 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49872             32.92 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49872            375.35 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions          9,957.99

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873         31,615.18 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873            322.29 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873          3,671.86 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873          2,037.44 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873          3,950.60 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873          5,667.53 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873            107.44 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49873            107.45 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49873            365.18 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873              6.93 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49873              6.92 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

06/16/2021     49873          1,297.73 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:16

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/16/2021     49873             20.78 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49873            236.63 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions         49,413.96

mployee Deductions

06/16/2021     49874          4,218.30 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION FICA

06/16/2021     49874            657.94 United States Treasu O & M/District Building - FICA Withholding

06/16/2021     49874          1,062.58 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict

06/16/2021     49874          1,308.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

06/16/2021     49874             20.00 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Federal Withold

ict/Federal Tax

Withheld

06/16/2021     49874             50.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

06/16/2021     49874         40,902.61 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

06/16/2021     49874            881.34 United States Treasu O & Building - Federal Withholding

M/District/Federal

Tax Withheld

06/16/2021     49874            570.35 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Federal Withold

ict/Federal Tax

Withheld

06/16/2021     49874          7,386.34 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION Medicare Withiheld

06/16/2021     49874            169.51 United States Treasu O & M/District Building- Medicare Withholding

06/16/2021     49874            264.15 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Medicare With

ict

06/16/2021     49874          5,938.82 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare - FICA Withholding

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

06/16/2021     49874          7,820.00 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare-Medicare Withheld         71,249.94

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

06/16/2021     49875            100.00 Wisconsin Dept Of Re EDUCATION/District EDUCATION WISC ST TAX

06/16/2021     49875          1,259.98 Wisconsin Dept Of Re EDUCATION/District EDUCATION WISC ST TAX

06/16/2021     49875              5.04 Wisconsin Dept Of Re TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation -WI State With          1,365.02

ict

06/17/2021     49876          1,200.00 Axelsson, Britt EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.          1,200.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:17

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

REIMBURSEMENT

06/17/2021     49877            439.56 Biancalana, Venette EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- PE Supp/Mat            439.56

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49878          2,400.00 Bolanos, Nancy EDUCATION/District/G ESSERII-- Summer School Sal          2,400.00

RANTS/TEMPORARY

SALARIES

06/17/2021     49879          1,792.00 Class Act EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- Graduation Supp/Mat          1,792.00

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49880             34.50 Daily Herald/Paddock EDUCATION/District/B Board-- Communication             34.50

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/COMMUNICATI

ON

06/17/2021     49881            840.00 eRate Program, LLC EDUCATION/District/R Distr-- E-rate vendor            840.00

ECEIVING AND

DISBURSING

FUNDS/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49882          1,781.86 Hodges, Loizzi, Eise EDUCATION/District/B Board-- Legal Services          1,781.86

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/LEGAL

SERVICES

06/17/2021     49883            360.05 Janusz, Lenayn EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat            360.05

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49884            500.00 Kellmann, Michelle EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            500.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/17/2021     49885            220.00 Lake County Educatio EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Staff

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49885            220.00 Lake County Educatio EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Staff

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49885            187.50 Lake County Educatio EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Staff            627.50

MPROVEMENT OF

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:18

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49886          2,250.00 Lardizabal, Jasmine EDUCATION/District/G ESSERII-- Summer School Sal          2,250.00

RANTS/TEMPORARY

SALARIES

06/17/2021     49887            879.99 McCulley, Matthew EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat            879.99

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49888          1,260.00 Nierman Landscape & O & M/District/CARE Grounds Upkeep Service          1,260.00

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49889          6,161.59 Onyx Asset Service G O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity          6,161.59

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

06/17/2021     49890            731.82 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49890            604.91 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49890            757.05 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49890            643.13 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49890            277.59 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)          3,014.50

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49891         16,826.79 SEDOL EDUCATION/SEDOL/Spec SPED--- SEDOL Tuition         16,826.79

ED/TutionOtherDistri

cts/Private Tuition

06/17/2021     49892             78.00 Smithereen Pest Mana O & Dist--- Pest Control Services

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:19

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49892             60.00 Smithereen Pest Mana O & Dist--- Pest Control Services

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49892             60.00 Smithereen Pest Mana O & Dist--- Pest Control Services            198.00

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/17/2021     49893             50.00 Smith, Phyllis EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat             50.00

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/17/2021     49894          1,360.00 Snapology of McHenry EDUCATION/District/G ESSER2- Snapology

RANTS/SOFTWARE

06/17/2021     49894          1,360.00 Snapology of McHenry EDUCATION/District/G ESSER2- Snapology          2,720.00

RANTS/SOFTWARE

06/17/2021     49895            280.50 Snook, Caroline EDUCATION/MIDDLE/BIL MS-- ELL Teacher Salary            280.50

INGUAL

PROGRAMS/REGULAR

SALARIES

06/17/2021     49896            189.00 Summers, Brian EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            189.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/23/2021     49897            115.00 Accurate Biometrics EDUCATION/District/B Board--- Purch Svc            115.00

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49899             28.99 Amazon EDUCATION/District/F Business-- Supp/Mat

ISCAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899          1,311.86 Amazon EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899             59.89 Amazon EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            828.28 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:20

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/23/2021     49899             30.98 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/EDU MS--- Library Grant

CATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            394.11 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/EDU MS--- Library Grant

CATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899          1,242.20 Amazon EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899             15.99 Amazon EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Supp/Mat

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            -16.98 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/EDU MS--- Library Supp/Mat

CATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899             54.14 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899             66.44 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Summer School Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            325.89 Amazon EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            162.19 Amazon EDUCATION/District/B LIPLEPS--- Supp/Mat

ILINGUAL

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            119.62 Amazon EDUCATION/PRIMARY/HE Pri-- Nurse Supp/Mat

ALTH

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899             70.67 Amazon EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc-- Purch Svc

OOD

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49899            126.43 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899          1,139.24 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            990.00 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:21

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            584.55 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49899            270.00 Amazon O & Dist--- O&M Pur Svc          7,804.49

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49900            757.50 Demco EDUCATION/MIDDLE/EDU MS--- Library Supp/Mat            757.50

CATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49901            700.00 Dyopath EDUCATION/District/F Distr-- Bus P/S (SinglePath)            700.00

ISCAL

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49902          2,640.00 Emeric Facility Serv O & Dist-- COVID Pur/Svc

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49902         14,371.00 Emeric Facility Serv O & M/District/CARE Cleaning Service         17,011.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/CLEANING

SERVICES

06/23/2021     49903          2,314.78 Exceptional Learners EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49903            131.69 Exceptional Learners EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc          2,446.47

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49904         11,524.57 GHA Technologies Inc EDUCATION/District/D Tech-- Chromebook licenses

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/DUES &

FEES

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:22

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/23/2021     49904        125,346.76 GHA Technologies Inc EDUCATION/District/D Tech-- COVID sup/mat        136,871.33

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49905            207.92 Gold, Robert EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Admin            207.92

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49906          4,901.52 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49906            139.90 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49906             59.27 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Pur (Non-Prog)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49906          2,038.29 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)          7,138.98

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49907            676.10 Granite Telecommunic O & M/District/CARE Phone Services (AT&T)            676.10

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/At&t

06/23/2021     49908            268.80 Kendall Hunt Publish EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- ELA resources            268.80

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

06/23/2021     49909          1,400.00 Lake County Regional EDUCATION/District/I Impr of Inst-- Lake Co Ed. Svc          1,400.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49910            239.84 Lamination Depot EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat            239.84

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49911            216.55 Language Line Servic EDUCATION/District/B LIPLEPS--- Supp/Mat            216.55

ILINGUAL

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49912             10.48 Marienthal, Margaret EDUCATION/District/S Distr--- Summer schl Supp/Mat             10.48

UMMER

SCHOOL/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:23

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/23/2021     49913             23.98 Napa Auto Supply Fox TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Rep/Maintenance             23.98

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/REPAIR AND

MAINTENANCE SERVICE

06/23/2021     49914          2,767.60 Pro-Ed, Inc EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat          2,767.60

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49915              8.99 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/G Title I--- Homeless Supp/Mat

RANTS/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49915             40.88 Quill Corp EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49915            -57.85 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/G Title I--- Homeless Supp/Mat

RANTS/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49915              6.02 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49915             67.10 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49915             57.58 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/G Title I--- Homeless Supp/Mat            122.72

RANTS/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49916            117.70 Scholastics Inc. EDUCATION/District/D Dir of Curr/Inst Sup/Mat            117.70

IRECTION OF CENTRAL

SUPPORT S/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49917            106.22 School Outfitters EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri--- Music Supp/Mat            106.22

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49918          8,091.20 Spectrum Center Inc EDUCATION/District/P SPED-- Other Dist Contr Svcs          8,091.20

AYMENTS FOR SPECIAL

EDUCATION/PROFESSION

AL AND TECHNICAL

SER

06/23/2021     49919         12,012.00 Speech Path Speciali EDUCATION/District/P SPED--- Psych Testing         12,012.00

SYCHOLOGICAL

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49920            360.00 Strand, Melissa Lynn EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc            360.00

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:24

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49921             30.00 TALX UC Express EDUCATION/District/B Board--- Unemploymemt Ins             30.00

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/INSURANCE

(OTHER THAN

EMPLOYEE

06/23/2021     49922          1,800.50 Techstar America Cor EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/23/2021     49922          1,331.68 Techstar America Cor EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/23/2021     49922            350.50 Techstar America Cor EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease          3,482.68

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/23/2021     49923            306.80 Thomson Reuters-West EDUCATION/District/B Board--- Residency Purch Svc            306.80

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/23/2021     49924             63.95 US Games EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri--- PE Supp/Mat             63.95

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49925             10.30 Waukegan Safe And Lo O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49925             11.80 Waukegan Safe And Lo O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat             22.10

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/23/2021     49926             80.00 Wex Health, Inc EDUCATION/District/B Board--Dues/Fee RevTrck & Bank             80.00

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/DUES &

FEES

06/30/2021     49927            990.00 A Child's Place EDUCATION/District/S Summer School Pur/Svc            990.00

UMMER

SCHOOL/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/30/2021     49928             49.13 Adams, Gretta EDUCATION/District/S Distr--- Summer schl Supp/Mat             49.13

UMMER

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:25

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SCHOOL/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49929            561.00 Alexian Brothers Beh EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Health Pur Svc            561.00

LEMENTARY/PROFESSION

AL AND TECHNICAL

SER

06/30/2021     49930          2,904.00 Allendale Associatio EDUCATION/Connection SPED--- Private School Tuition          2,904.00

Day

SC-Palatine/Spec Ed

Private

Tuition/Private

Tuition

06/30/2021     49931             97.52 Alpha Baking Co, Inc EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)             97.52

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49932            424.78 Amazon EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49932            107.97 Amazon O & M/District/CARE Grounds Upkeep Service

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/30/2021     49932             56.00 Amazon O & Dist--- O&M Pur Svc            588.75

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

06/30/2021     49933         10,219.60 Antioch School Distr EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc         10,219.60

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

06/30/2021     49934             25.53 Aramark Uniform & Ca EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49934             25.53 Aramark Uniform & Ca EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49934             25.53 Aramark Uniform & Ca EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)             76.59

OOD

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:26

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49935             50.00 Arndt, Christine EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49936            300.00 Baisden, Jeffrey EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M            300.00

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49937             50.00 Biancalana, Venette EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49937          1,100.00 Biancalana, Venette EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.          1,150.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/30/2021     49938            154.00 Big Hollow Imprest F TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- CDL Permits            154.00

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/OTHER

PURCHASED SERVICES

06/30/2021     49939            188.20 Children's Plus Inc. EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Library Books

/EDUCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49939            515.53 Children's Plus Inc. EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Library Books

/EDUCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49939            167.86 Children's Plus Inc. EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Library Books

/EDUCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49939            182.55 Children's Plus Inc. EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Library Grant

/EDUCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49939            166.60 Children's Plus Inc. EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Library Grant

/EDUCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49939             84.69 Children's Plus Inc. EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Library Grant

/EDUCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49939            320.16 Children's Plus Inc. EDUCATION/PRIMARY/ED Pri--- Library Grant          1,625.59

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:27

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

UCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49940          1,600.13 ComEd O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

06/30/2021     49940          2,278.79 ComEd O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity          3,878.92

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

06/30/2021     49941             73.00 Cozzini Bros., Inc., EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)             73.00

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49942             50.00 DeNovo, Kira EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49943          1,226.17 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat          1,226.17

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49944            349.00 First Educational Re EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Admin            349.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/30/2021     49945          3,500.00 Flade, Stephanie EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.          3,500.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/30/2021     49946          5,548.83 Follett School Solut EDUCATION/District/G ESSER3-- Summer Reading Prog          5,548.83

RANTS/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49947          1,088.44 GHA Technologies Inc EDUCATION/District/D Tech-- COVID sup/mat          1,088.44

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49948             50.00 Gold, Robert EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49949          3,827.54 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:28

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49949          3,220.08 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49949          2,793.19 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49949             83.26 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- S/M (Program)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49949            154.03 Gordon Food Service EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Pur (Non-Prog)         10,078.10

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49950            897.75 H & J Educational Re EDUCATION/PRIMARY/ED Pri--- Library Books

UCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49950            114.22 H & J Educational Re EDUCATION/PRIMARY/ED Pri--- Library Grant          1,011.97

UCATIONAL MEDIA

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49951            100.00 Hetrovicz, Michelle EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend            100.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49952          1,821.08 Hodges, Loizzi, Eise EDUCATION/District/B Board-- Legal Services          1,821.08

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/LEGAL

SERVICES

06/30/2021     49953             79.00 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49953            125.76 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49953             29.67 Home Depot Credit Se EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49953             83.76 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:29

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49953             84.48 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat            402.67

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49954          3,906.00 Illinois MTSS Networ EDUCATION/District/I IDEA-- Impr of Inst          3,906.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/30/2021     49955             50.00 Janusz, Lenayn EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49956          3,050.00 Jessica M. Oladapo EDUCATION/District/I Impr of Instr-- DEI training          3,050.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

06/30/2021     49957          1,027.92 Kendall Hunt Publish EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- ELA resources          1,027.92

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

06/30/2021     49958             50.00 King, Victorene Lee EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49959            385.00 Lakeland Septic Serv O & M/District/CARE Sanitation Services            385.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SANITATION

SERVICES

06/30/2021     49960            961.40 Lakeshore Learning C EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49960            526.70 Lakeshore Learning C EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat          1,488.10

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:30

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/30/2021     49961          1,200.00 Lancaster, Kristina EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.          1,200.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/30/2021     49962             50.00 McCulley, Matthew EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49963             50.00 Meek, Stephanie EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49964             91.17 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964              8.49 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964             88.93 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964            126.95 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964            102.97 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964             74.90 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964             20.68 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:31

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

06/30/2021     49964             65.57 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964             80.31 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964            351.45 Menards O & Elem--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49964            297.42 Menards O & Elem--- Maintenance Supp/Mat          1,308.84

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49965            425.00 MHS EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat            425.00

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49966          1,216.40 Midland Paper EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Copy paper

EMENTARY/Copy Paper

06/30/2021     49966          1,216.40 Midland Paper EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Copy paper          2,432.80

EMENTARY/Copy Paper

06/30/2021     49967            485.00 Miller, Carrie EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            485.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/30/2021     49968             50.00 Morley, Sunny EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49969            449.28 Nicor Gas O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Natural Gas

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

06/30/2021     49969            547.48 Nicor Gas O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Natural Gas

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:32

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

GAS

06/30/2021     49969            415.77 Nicor Gas O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Natural Gas

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

06/30/2021     49969            428.92 Nicor Gas O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Natural Gas          1,841.45

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

06/30/2021     49970            825.00 Ovassapian, Madeline EDUCATION/District/C EDUCATION CASH ON HAND GENERAL            825.00

ASH IN BANK

06/30/2021     49971            130.00 PAHCS II/Northwester TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Bus Driver Physicals            130.00

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/OTHER

PURCHASED SERVICES

06/30/2021     49972             21.75 Philippsen, Michelle EDUCATION/District/O FoodSvc--- Travel

THER FOOD

SERVICES/TRAVEL

06/30/2021     49972             43.50 Philippsen, Michelle EDUCATION/District/O FoodSvc--- Travel             65.25

THER FOOD

SERVICES/TRAVEL

06/30/2021     49973             50.00 Pittman, Erin EDUCATION/District/E Admin cell phone stipend             50.00

XECUTIVE

ADMINISTRATION

SERVI/Other Benefit

06/30/2021     49974            575.85 PMA Leasing, INC EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/30/2021     49974            547.00 PMA Leasing, INC EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/30/2021     49974          1,865.00 PMA Leasing, INC EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/30/2021     49974            865.00 PMA Leasing, INC EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/30/2021     49974            560.00 PMA Leasing, INC EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:33

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/30/2021     49974          1,698.41 PMA Leasing, INC EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease          6,111.26

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

06/30/2021     49975          1,000.00 Quadient Finance USA EDUCATION/District/B Board-- Communication          1,000.00

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/COMMUNICATI

ON

06/30/2021     49976            233.80 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/G Title I--- Homeless Supp/Mat

RANTS/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49976             87.27 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/F Business-- Supp/Mat

ISCAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49976            790.14 Quill Corp EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat          1,111.21

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49977            208.55 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Water/Sewer Services

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

06/30/2021     49977            138.71 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & Elem--- Water/Sewer Services

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

06/30/2021     49977            143.71 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Water/Sewer Services            490.97

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

06/30/2021     49978            674.21 School Specialty EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Classroom spec requst            674.21

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49979            103.88 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49979            403.76 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:34

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49979            302.82 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49979            340.31 Schuring & Schuring, EDUCATION/District/F FoodSvc--- Food Purch. (Prgrm)          1,150.77

OOD

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49980          1,100.00 Stump, Alison EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.          1,100.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

06/30/2021     49981             50.00 Swiderski, Derek TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans-- cell phone stipend             50.00

ict/SERVICE AREA

DIRECTION/Other

Benefit

06/30/2021     49982            471.00 TPRS Books EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- Spanish Workbooks            471.00

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/Workbooks

06/30/2021     49983            996.00 Uline O & M/District/CARE Dist--- COVID Supp/Mat            996.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49984             50.00 Wegrzyn, Courtney EDUCATION/District/S Distr--- Summer schl Supp/Mat             50.00

UMMER

SCHOOL/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49985            466.19 West Music EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri--- Music Supp/Mat            466.19

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

06/30/2021     49986             16.00 Wick, Heather EDUCATION/District/C EDUCATION CASH ON HAND GENERAL

ASH IN BANK

06/30/2021     49986             14.50 Wick, Heather EDUCATION/District/C EDUCATION CASH ON HAND GENERAL

ASH IN BANK

06/30/2021     49986             12.99 Wick, Heather EDUCATION/District/C EDUCATION CASH ON HAND GENERAL

ASH IN BANK

06/30/2021     49986              5.99 Wick, Heather EDUCATION/District/C EDUCATION CASH ON HAND GENERAL             49.48

ASH IN BANK

  

       796,427.80 Totals for checks 

Exhibit 3



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 07/07/21 Page:35

05.21.06.00.00 June 2021 Check History (Dates: 06/01/21 - 06/30/21) 10:36 AM

 F U N D  S U M M A R Y

  

FUND  DESCRIPTION                        BALANCE SHEET           REVENUE           EXPENSE             TOTAL

10 EDUCATION        279,262.82              0.00        385,151.34        664,414.16

20 O & M          6,043.41              0.00         62,925.13         68,968.54

40 TRANSPORTATION         11,808.56              0.00          8,121.04         19,929.60

50 SOCIAL SECURITY/MEDICARE         28,699.73              0.00              0.00         28,699.73

51 IMRF         14,415.77              0.00              0.00         14,415.77

*** Fund Summary Totals ***        340,230.29              0.00        456,197.51        796,427.80

************************ End of report ************************

Exhibit 3



CHECK DATE CHECK NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL

6/23/2021 49904 GHA Technologies Inc $136,871.33

6/1/2021 49819 United States Treasury $78,002.11

6/16/2021 49874 United States Treasury $71,249.94

6/16/2021 49873 Teachers Retirement System $49,413.96

6/1/2021 49818 Teachers Retirement System $48,441.28

6/16/2021 49870 Ill Municipal Retirement Fund $23,565.39

6/1/2021 49816 Illinois Dept Of Revenue $23,313.80

6/16/2021 49871 Illinois Dept Of Revenue $21,748.16

6/23/2021 49902 Emeric Facility Services $17,011.00

6/17/2021 49891 SEDOL $16,826.79

6/10/2021 49841 GHA Technologies Inc $16,441.28

6/23/2021 49919 Speech Path Specialists $12,012.00

6/10/2021 49822 Adlai E. Stevenson High School $11,935.59

6/10/2021 49833 Connection's Day School $10,594.02

6/1/2021 49817 Teacher's Health Insurance Security Fund $10,586.32

6/30/2021 49933 Antioch School District 34 $10,219.60

6/30/2021 49949 Gordon Food Service Inc $10,078.10

6/16/2021 49872 Teacher's Health Insurance Security Fund $9,957.99

6/10/2021 49842 Gordon Food Service Inc $9,101.65

6/10/2021 49864 Spectrum Center Inc $8,900.32

6/23/2021 49918 Spectrum Center Inc $8,091.20

6/23/2021 49899 Amazon $7,804.49

6/23/2021 49906 Gordon Food Service Inc $7,138.98

6/10/2021 49827 Amazon $6,856.32

6/10/2021 49857 Northwestern CTD $6,600.00

6/10/2021 49843 Grant Township Highway Department $6,539.59

6/17/2021 49889 Onyx Asset Service Groups LLC $6,161.59

6/30/2021 49974 PMA Leasing, INC $6,111.26

6/30/2021 49946 Follett School Solutions Inc $5,548.83

6/10/2021 49837 Emeric Facility Services $5,280.00

6/10/2021 49834 Connection's Academy East $5,181.30

Exhibit 3



6/10/2021 49832 ComEd $4,685.28

6/10/2021 49852 Martin-Upton, Eileen $4,275.00

6/30/2021 49954 Illinois MTSS Network $3,906.00

6/30/2021 49940 ComEd $3,878.92

6/10/2021 49856 Nicor Gas $3,711.39

6/30/2021 49945 Flade, Stephanie $3,500.00

6/23/2021 49922 Techstar America Corporations $3,482.68

6/10/2021 49854 NCC - Peterson Products $3,318.90

6/10/2021 49849 Lake County Dept of Public Works $3,230.50

6/30/2021 49956 Jessica M. Oladapo $3,050.00

6/17/2021 49890 Schuring & Schuring, Inc $3,014.50

6/30/2021 49930 Allendale Association $2,904.00

6/10/2021 49823 Advanced Disposal $2,893.93

6/23/2021 49914 Pro-Ed, Inc $2,767.60

6/17/2021 49894 Snapology of McHenry $2,720.00

6/10/2021 49867 William & Mary Center for Gifted Education $2,700.00

6/10/2021 49839 Exceptional Learners Collaborative $2,490.36

6/23/2021 49903 Exceptional Learners Collaborative $2,446.47

6/30/2021 49966 Midland Paper $2,432.80

6/17/2021 49878 Bolanos, Nancy $2,400.00

6/17/2021 49886 Lardizabal, Jasmine $2,250.00

6/30/2021 49969 Nicor Gas $1,841.45

6/30/2021 49952 Hodges, Loizzi, Eisenhammer, Rodick,Kohn $1,821.08

6/17/2021 49879 Class Act $1,792.00

6/17/2021 49882 Hodges, Loizzi, Eisenhammer, Rodick,Kohn $1,781.86

6/1/2021 49820 Wisconsin Dept Of Revenue $1,711.84

6/30/2021 49939 Children's Plus Inc. $1,625.59

6/10/2021 49850 Lamination Depot $1,587.50

6/30/2021 49960 Lakeshore Learning Center $1,488.10

6/10/2021 49855 Net56 $1,400.00

6/23/2021 49909 Lake County Regional Office Of Education $1,400.00

Exhibit 3



6/16/2021 49875 Wisconsin Dept Of Revenue $1,365.02

6/30/2021 49964 Menards $1,308.84

6/17/2021 49888 Nierman Landscape & Design $1,260.00

6/10/2021 49866 The Public Face, LLC $1,250.00

6/30/2021 49943 Discount School Supplies $1,226.17

6/17/2021 49876 Axelsson, Britt $1,200.00

6/30/2021 49961 Lancaster, Kristina $1,200.00

6/10/2021 49865 Strand, Melissa Lynn $1,152.00

6/30/2021 49979 Schuring & Schuring, Inc $1,150.77

6/30/2021 49937 Biancalana, Venette Irene $1,150.00

6/10/2021 49868 Wilson, Judith $1,125.00

6/30/2021 49976 Quill Corp $1,111.21

6/30/2021 49980 Stump, Alison $1,100.00

6/30/2021 49947 GHA Technologies Inc $1,088.44

6/10/2021 49845 Home Depot Credit Services $1,074.99

6/30/2021 49957 Kendall Hunt Publishing Company $1,027.92

6/30/2021 49950 H & J Educational Resources $1,011.97

6/30/2021 49975 Quadient Finance USA, Inc $1,000.00

6/30/2021 49983 Uline $996.00

6/10/2021 49824 Alexian Brothers Behavioral Hospital $990.00

6/30/2021 49927 A Child's Place $990.00

6/10/2021 49829 Axess Transportation $952.00

6/17/2021 49887 McCulley, Matthew $879.99

6/10/2021 49831 Carroll, Megan $862.50

6/10/2021 49848 Integrated Systems Corporation $844.80

6/17/2021 49881 eRate Program, LLC $840.00

6/30/2021 49970 Ovassapian, Madeline Atourina $825.00

6/10/2021 49863 School Specialty $808.80

6/23/2021 49900 Demco $757.50

6/10/2021 49858 Oriental Trading Company $740.82

6/23/2021 49901 Dyopath $700.00

Exhibit 3



6/23/2021 49907 Granite Telecommunications $676.10

6/30/2021 49978 School Specialty $674.21

6/17/2021 49885 Lake County Educational Service Ctr $627.50

6/30/2021 49932 Amazon $588.75

6/30/2021 49929 Alexian Brothers Behavioral Hospital $561.00

6/10/2021 49838 Erickson, Douglas $547.50

6/10/2021 49853 Menards $533.78

6/10/2021 49862 Schindler Elevator Corporation $522.09

6/10/2021 49860 Project Lead the Way $500.00

6/17/2021 49884 Kellmann, Michelle $500.00

6/30/2021 49977 ReadyRefresh by Nestle $490.97

6/30/2021 49967 Miller, Carrie $485.00

6/30/2021 49982 TPRS Books $471.00

6/30/2021 49985 West Music $466.19

6/10/2021 49846 Hudson Energy Services LLC $459.88

6/17/2021 49877 Biancalana, Venette Irene $439.56

6/30/2021 49965 MHS $425.00

6/30/2021 49953 Home Depot Credit Services $402.67

6/30/2021 49959 Lakeland Septic Service $385.00

6/17/2021 49883 Janusz, Lenayn $360.05

6/23/2021 49920 Strand, Melissa Lynn $360.00

6/10/2021 49840 EZfund.Com $349.00

6/30/2021 49944 First Educational Resources, LLC $349.00

6/10/2021 49825 Alpha Baking Co, Inc. $327.13

6/23/2021 49923 Thomson Reuters-West $306.80

6/10/2021 49851 Learning Without Tears $304.00

6/30/2021 49936 Baisden, Jeffrey $300.00

6/10/2021 49847 Ingleside Auto & Tire Center $284.69

6/17/2021 49895 Snook, Caroline $280.50

6/23/2021 49908 Kendall Hunt Publishing Company $268.80

6/23/2021 49910 Lamination Depot $239.84

Exhibit 3



6/23/2021 49911 Language Line Services $216.55

6/23/2021 49905 Gold, Robert $207.92

6/17/2021 49892 Smithereen Pest Management $198.00

6/17/2021 49896 Summers, Brian $189.00

6/30/2021 49938 Big Hollow Imprest Fund $154.00

6/10/2021 49836 CPI $150.00

6/10/2021 49869 Yablun, Amanda $147.06

6/30/2021 49971 PAHCS II/Northwestern Occ Health $130.00

6/10/2021 49835 Cozzini Bros., Inc., $123.00

6/23/2021 49915 Quill Corp $122.72

6/23/2021 49916 Scholastics Inc. $117.70

6/23/2021 49897 Accurate Biometrics $115.00

6/23/2021 49917 School Outfitters $106.22

6/30/2021 49951 Hetrovicz, Michelle $100.00

6/30/2021 49931 Alpha Baking Co, Inc. $97.52

6/10/2021 49859 Philippsen, Michelle $87.00

6/23/2021 49926 Wex Health, Inc $80.00

6/10/2021 49828 Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel Group Inc $76.59

6/30/2021 49934 Aramark Uniform & Career Apparel Group Inc $76.59

6/10/2021 49861 Raney Day Services $75.00

6/30/2021 49941 Cozzini Bros., Inc., $73.00

6/30/2021 49972 Philippsen, Michelle $65.25

6/23/2021 49924 US Games $63.95

6/10/2021 49844 Great Minds $52.68

6/17/2021 49893 Smith, Phyllis $50.00

6/30/2021 49935 Arndt, Christine $50.00

6/30/2021 49942 DeNovo, Kira $50.00

6/30/2021 49948 Gold, Robert $50.00

6/30/2021 49955 Janusz, Lenayn $50.00

6/30/2021 49958 King, Victorene Lee $50.00

6/30/2021 49962 McCulley, Matthew $50.00

Exhibit 3



6/30/2021 49963 Meek, Stephanie $50.00

6/30/2021 49968 Morley, Sunny $50.00

6/30/2021 49973 Pittman, Erin $50.00

6/30/2021 49981 Swiderski, Derek $50.00

6/30/2021 49984 Wegrzyn, Courtney $50.00

6/30/2021 49986 Wick, Heather $49.48

6/30/2021 49928 Adams, Gretta $49.13

6/17/2021 49880 Daily Herald/Paddock Publications, Inc $34.50

6/10/2021 49830 Big Hollow PTO $30.60

6/23/2021 49921 TALX UC Express $30.00

6/23/2021 49913 Napa Auto Supply Fox Lake $23.98

6/23/2021 49925 Waukegan Safe And Lock $22.10

6/10/2021 49821 Ace Hardware Home Center $20.09

6/23/2021 49912 Marienthal, Margaret Michelle $10.48

6/3/2021 49603 Jet Fast Printing Inc. -$2,835.00

Exhibit 3



Jun 30, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
State Bank  Activity Bank Acct

Girls on the Run 49.13
In & Out Account 1,204.76
National Junior Honor Society 2,715.89
Nature Center 2,616.70
Recycling Club 2,676.83
Student Council 6,809.53
Sunshine Club - Elementary 42.02
Sunshine Club - Primary 861.01
State Bank  Activity Bank Acct - Other 406.65

Total State Bank  Activity Bank Acct 17,382.52

Total Checking/Savings 17,382.52

Total Current Assets 17,382.52

TOTAL ASSETS 17,382.52

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Retained Earnings 16,292.52
Net Income 1,090.00

Total Equity 17,382.52

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 17,382.52

10:11 AM Big Hollow Student Activity Funds
07/07/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2021

Page 1

Exhibit 4



Convenience Fund Report

June 2021

Account Beginning Balance Debits Credits Ending Balance

Prek 1010.66 1010.66

KG 2054.18 2054.18

1st Grade 3894.28 3894.28

2nd Grade 1217.97 133.88 1084.09

3rd Grade 3166.97 828.28 2338.69

4th Grade 506.09 506.09

5th Grade 2269.67 2269.67

6th Grade 766.71 766.71

7th Grade 2457.51 2457.51

8th Grade 13869.98 858.48 350.00 13361.50

Art-P/E 0.00 0.00

Cheer 945.13 945.13

Computers-P 221.24 221.24

Computers-E -0.49 -0.49
Concessions-Athletic 2090.08 2090.08
Concessions-PE 3746.03 3746.03
Graphics Arts 331.77 331.77

Lets Read to Grow 813.96 500.00 313.96

Library-P/E 32.00 32.00

Library-MS 679.12 679.12

Music-P/E -39.71 -39.71

Noetic Math 59.50 59.50

PBIS-MS 2564.53 2564.53

PE-P 25.75 25.75

PE-E -245.98 -245.98
Poms 656.23 656.23

Prime Time 2670.00 2670.00

Reading P/E 4355.65 4355.65

Respect 665.00 665.00

Special Ed 33.00 33.00

Sports Camps 318.00 318.00

STARS-P 2020.60 2020.60

STARS-E 3310.77 3310.77
STEM CLUB 317.28 317.28
Yearbook-M 545.30 75.00 620.30
Yearbook-P/E 581.94 581.94

In & Out Account 2606.04 2606.04

Total 60516.76 2320.64 425.00 58621.12

Exhibit 4



Date Education O&M Transportation IMRF/SS Total

10-Jun-21 $599,038.34 $14,492.86 $39,080.36 $22,538.66 $675,150.22

25-Jun-21 $582,822.00 $13,170.46 $20,037.29 $20,576.84 $636,606.59

Grand Total $1,181,860.34 $27,663.32 $59,117.65 $43,115.50 $1,311,756.81

Board of Education President Date Board of Education Secretary Date

Big Hollow School District 38 Big Hollow School District 38

Big Hollow School District 38

Payroll Summary

Exhibit 5



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



Exhibit 6



www.bighollow.us
Mr. Robert Gold, Superintendent

Big Hollow District Office
26051 W. Nippersink Rd.
Ingleside, IL 60041
Phone 847-740-1490
Fax 847-740-9172

Big Hollow Primary School (EC-1)
33335 N. Fish Lake Rd.
Ingleside, IL 60041
Phone 847-740-5320
Fax 847-740-3490

Big Hollow Elementary (2-4)
33315 N. Fish Lake Rd.
Ingleside, IL  60041
Phone 847-740-5321
Fax 847-740-3795

Big Hollow Middle School (5-8)
26051 W. Nippersink Rd.
Ingleside, IL  60041
Phone 847-740-5322
Fax 847-740-9021

Health Insurance Committee Meeting

July 7, 2021

District Office/Zoom Meeting

4:30 p.m.

Agenda

● Review the current proposals submitted for health/dental/vision/life insurance.
o Summary of 2020-2021 claim data as of the end of May 2021
o Summary of proposals submitted
o Draft letter to the Board

● Recommendation to be submitted to the Board on July 12, 2021
● Adjourn

Exhibit 7

http://www.bighollow.us
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1uUxPwXEa0LWMkxZ4QEkgrGljQzMOOfJI/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11PiUBh0G6fz7rylgbrLKRm-yXVL-cbr2/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Idv-HFjpNRKnOgaPs-0CdhSWhjqAJ0oA/view?usp=sharing


www.bighollow.us
Mr. Robert Gold, Superintendent

Big Hollow District Office
26051 W. Nippersink Rd.
Ingleside, IL 60041
Phone 847-740-1490
Fax 847-740-9172

Big Hollow Primary School (EC-1)
33335 N. Fish Lake Rd.
Ingleside, IL 60041
Phone 847-740-5320
Fax 847-740-3490

Big Hollow Elementary (2-4)
33315 N. Fish Lake Rd.
Ingleside, IL  60041
Phone 847-740-5321
Fax 847-740-3795

Big Hollow Middle School (5-8)
26051 W. Nippersink Rd.
Ingleside, IL  60041
Phone 847-740-5322
Fax 847-740-9021

BOARD OF EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 07/06/2020 Location: District Office

Committee: Insurance Committee

Members Present: Kevin Lyons, Doug Pedersen

Others in Attendance: Bob Gold, Janine Vasica, Michelle Connolly, Gretta Adams, Jennifer
Zonsius

Duration of Meeting: 4:30 p.m. - 5:00 p.m.

Topic Points and/or Summary of Discussion:

● Reviewed the current proposals that were submitted.
● Committee agreed to move forward with the plan offered by Cigna and MetLife.  A proposal will

be shared with the board on July 12, 2021.

Submitted by:

Exhibit 7

http://www.bighollow.us


Big Hollow School District 38
End of Year Budget Summary

June 30, 2021
Pre-Audited Calculations

Revenue Expense
Fund Beginning Balance Budgeted Actual Budgeted Actual June 30, 2021 Balance

Education (Fund 10) $4,963,587 $15,633,420 $15,781,053 $17,269,937 $15,699,678 $5,044,962
O&M (Fund 20) $3,299,886 $1,485,000 $1,418,194 $1,600,745 $1,291,613 $3,426,467

Debt Svc (Fund 30) $2,581,500 $5,096,500 $4,940,861 $4,869,851 $4,869,778 $2,652,583
Transportation (Fund 40) $508,736 $1,095,000 $1,435,902 $1,457,725 $1,064,663 $879,975

SS/IMRF (Fund 50) $222,777 $496,550 $523,614 $568,700 $485,120 $261,271
Capital Projects (Fund 60) $793,563 $39,000 $339,613 $185,000 $255,212 $877,964
Working Cash (Fund 70) $1,265,478 $106,000 $100,551 $0 $0 $1,366,029

Tort (Fund 80) $45,128 $144,700 $154,752 $157,000 $156,190 $43,690
Total $13,680,655 $24,096,170 $24,694,540 $26,108,958 $23,822,254 $14,552,941

Exhibit 8



www.bighollow.us
Mr. Robert Gold, Superintendent

Date: July 12, 2021
To: BHSD Board of Education
From: Robert B. Gold, Superintendent
Re: Energy report

Over the last several years the Building/Grounds/Transportation committee has recommended
many changes to facilitate energy savings in our school district.  There are four major initiatives
that have impacted cost savings most significantly:

● LED lighting upgrade
● Recommissioning study
● Negotiation of lower electric and gas rates
● Solar field installation (effective May 2020)

The table below is an energy cost summary over the past several years:

Big Hollow School District
Energy Cost Analysis

Year Natural Gas Electricity Total

2014-2015 $142,941 $374,170 $517,111

2015-2016 $87,826 $361,797 $449,623

2016-2017 $69,951 $347,058 $417,009

2017-2018 $75,580 $295,264 $370,844

2018-2019 $61,433 $242,204 $303,637

2019-2020 $60,277 $251,935 $312,212

2020-2021 $34,963 $152,379 $187,342

*The 2021 costs reflect an annual savings of $329,769 under 2015 expenses

Big Hollow School District Office
26051 W. Nippersink Road

Ingleside, Il. 60041
847-740-1490

Exhibit 9

http://www.bighollow.us/


Big Hollow School District 38

Strategic Action Plan 2017-2022

Executive Summary

July 12, 2021

Motto: Believing in Higher Standards

  Mission: Inspiring a diverse school community to be passionate and empathetic learners.

Vision: "Big Hollow School District #38 will be a model of student achievement for elementary school districts in the State of Illinois"

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



Goal #1:  Encourage diversity and build a supportive and
inclusive Big Hollow community.

Action Steps Progress
1. Promoting Big Hollow “pride” throughout the

community
● New logos were developed which incorporate the vision and motto for BHSD38.
● BHSD promotional items (such as yard signs, bags, bumper stickers, cups...etc) have been

purchased and distributed to families through various on-campus events.
● Strong efforts have been made by BHSD administrators and staff to utilize social media in

promoting the great things happening at Big Hollow.
● The “Back to School Bash” has been a huge success through the PTO.

2. Warrior Workshops for parents ● Warrior Workshops were established as a way to provide parents with an opportunity to
learn more about various topics relating to their experience at BHSD38.  These workshops
were well attended initially, but were halted with the pandemic.  This activity will be
revisited in the future.

3. Build partnerships with parents and local
businesses

● BHES has established a community outreach committee.
● Partnerships have been made with local churches and the Kids Hope USA mentoring

program.
● Community partners (parents, seniors, Lake County Sheriff's Dept….etc) have been utilized

to speak to students on topics such as SEL, Anti-Bullying, and Careers.
● Veteran’s Day activities have been planned in partnership with local Veteran organizations.
● Parents have been heavily involved in planning for the annual Cultural Affair, Black History

Month, and Hispanic Heritage Month.
● A wellness fair committee has been established and partners with local organizations in

planning for the annual wellness fair.
● BHMS student leaders have partnered with the Community Care Center
● Primary/Elementary teachers have partnered with Jewel and Grant Township to help restock

the food pantry.

4. Continued focus on welcoming new parents,
new students, and new teachers to the Big
Hollow School District.

● Welcome packets have been created and are shared with all new families.
● A new teacher mentor program has been established and expanded over the past few years.

New teachers are also meeting with principals once per month and quarterly with their
mentors.  Mr. Gold also meets with all new teachers individually sometime during their first
year at Big Hollow.

● Kindergarten Camp has been established to assist kindergarten students and families as they
transition into Big Hollow.

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



● BHMS has established the 5th Grade Transition Camp for all incoming 5th grade students to
get acclimated to BHMS before school begins.

● Mr. Gold does a follow-up call with all families who move to the district within the school
year, seeking their input on how we can improve the transition process for new students and
families.

● New elementary and middle school students are paired with student-leaders to give them a
tour and walk them through their schedule.

● Elementary principal meets with all new students individually and also reaches out to
families during the transition time.

5. Plan to increase involvement opportunities for
families of various cultures to engage in the
Big Hollow Community.

● The African-American Parent Advisory Council (AAPAC) was established in the fall of 2019.
Discussions from this group have led to important training and discussions throughout the
district.

● Parents are involved in planning for Black History Month, Hispanic Heritage Month, and the
annual Big Hollow Cultural Fair.

● The Bilingual Parent Advisory Committee (BPAC) is now led by parents under the guidance of
our administrators.

● The District Equity Team has been launched along with building-level equity teams.  Initial
training has been completed with all teams.

6. Develop a plan to involve students in Big
Hollow community service projects through
their clubs and teams.

● There has been a focus for athletic teams to do at least one service project within our
community.

● The National Junior Honors Society has been established, and this group has a focus on
service within the school and community.

7. Increase opportunities to recognize academic
success for all students

● Primary and Elementary students who meet their MAP growth goal in winter and spring will
be recognized with backpack brag tags.

● Student of the Month signs are delivered to homes by each grade level at BHMS.

8. Minority parent support for new minority
families moving to our School District.

● A system is in place to provide new minority parents a “buddy” family to assist with their
transition to Big Hollow.

9. Peer Mentoring ● A peer-to-peer mentoring program has been established using BHMS students to mentor
students in grades K-4.

10. Expansion of the Citizens Advisory Council ● The Citizens Advisory Council was established with 25 members (students, parents,
community members).  The council was expanded to include up to 75 members starting in
the 2020-2021 school year.

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



11. Increase student leadership opportunities and
student voice

● Efforts have been made to increase student representation on district and building level
committees and task forces when appropriate.

● During COVID-19, there were student-led focus groups discussing the impact on all aspects
of the student educational experience.

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



Goal #2:  Successfully acquire, integrate and implement
technology into supporting student learning.

Action Steps Progress
1. Create a Technology Plan that reaches out 3-5

years
● A three-year plan has been created, updated, and presented to the Board each year.

2. Streamline the use of technology software to
provide consistency across grade levels.

● Programs are being bought at the district and building level.
● Programs have been standardized through the district.
● A “New Program Approvals” Process has been created.

3. Create a plan for adequate annual
technology training for all new staff
who are new Big Hollow prior to the
first day of school each year.

● New staff receives 2-3 hours of training from the technology department to get them
acclimated to Big Hollow

● There is a 2 day New teacher orientation now that provides an extra layer of support for the
more grade level/job specific tech training through a mentor/mentee program.

4. Assure that staffing in the technology
department supports the current needs of
the District.

● Staffing has been updated from a director and part time technician to a director, full time help
desk manager, full time admin assistant/technician, and 2 days a week of part time support.

5. Ensure processes are in place for
staff/parents/students to receive proper
training on how to access and utilize the
various technological supports that are
available.

● Over 150 Tech How to Documents have been created.
● Videos are in the process of being created.
● Once the project is complete, it will be posted on the web for parents.
● Staff will be linked to an internal document for reference.

6. Increase Security in and around the school ● The door and key systems were updated from Windows 98 to Windows 10.
● A new Camera system was installed in the middle school.
● Exterior Cameras were installed at all schools.
● It is planned to install new cameras in the Elementary and Primary Buildings in the summer of

2021

7. Implement a 1:1 Device Program ● All students have been issued a Chromebook device.
● Students will be transitioned to receiving a new chromebook in grades K, 3, 6.  These

chromebooks will stay with the students for the 3 year cycles.  They will not be required to
return them during the three year cycle unless they leave Big Hollow.

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



8. Increase Cyber Security ● We had an evaluation done on our network to identify vulnerabilities.
● We updated all devices to make sure that we are up to date and compliant with Microsoft

Security updates.
● We have upgraded our servers to be up to date and compliant.
● We have created redundancy and backups within our main server.
● We are in the process of building a backup server to protect against ransomware attacks.
● Staff has been trained on phishing scams and email attacks.
● We are regularly tested for phishing scams.

9. Upgrade Wired/Wireless Infrastructure ● The data center was outfitted with all new switches for our wired network.
● All new access points were installed in all buildings.
● The number of access points were more than doubled within the school.
● All classroom projectors were all networked to be accessed wirelessly.

10. Outfit every classroom for live streaming and
remote learning.

● Classroom PCs have been updated with machines that are designed for streaming.
● Sound System is being purchased to increase the volume within each classroom as well as

connect to remote learners.
● All classrooms have received a webcam for remote learning.

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



Goal #3:  Meet the unique educational needs of our student body
through transformational teaching and learning.

Action Steps Progress
1. Monitor and improve the District’s

multi-tiered system of support. Expand
upon the MTSS framework for the
implementation of academic opportunities
(intervention, differentiation, enrichment) in
the PK-8 setting.

● PBIS training and Tier 1 social emotional curriculum training occurred district wide
● Social emotional restorative practices presented to staff
● Introduction and implementation of DESSA to inform Tier 1 & Tier 2 delivery
● Social emotional learning curriculum fully implemented PreK-8
● Primary school social emotional learning counselor position established and filled.
● Introduced trauma informed care for all staff
● MTSS internal audit document created and completed by all three schools
● District-level approved assessment instruments list created
● Established decision making rules for identifying students receiving Tier 2 & Tier 3 services
● Expansion of district-approved and pedagogically sound instructional decisions & techniques
● Hired outside consultant for MTSS/ handbook completed/ PD plan developed
● Structures and meetings established to provide ongoing PD for the MTSS team-leads
● Training for all specialists for district-approved math and reading interventions

2. Strengthen learning goals and instructional
plans for students who receive
services. Implement multiple pathways of
research-based strategies for
instruction to ensure students succeed.

● MTSS Handbook developed
● Improvement of problem solving process

3. Expand upon district-approved and
pedagogically sound instructional
decisions and techniques

● Guided Reading, literature circles
● Guided Math, workshop model
● Using assessments & rubrics to inform instructional decisions

4. Launch Kindergarten transitional
communication classroom

● Analyzed individual student data and needs
● Determined multi-age Pre/K classroom would best meet needs of students with looping

teacher

5. Launch district data dashboard ● Launched use of Otus Learning Management System
● Training complete for use of Otus

6. Evaluate use of personalized learning
experiences through technology

● Continuous review of student data & performance on Dreambox, Lexia, Imagine Learning

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



7. Evaluate providing academic learning
opportunities outside of typical school hours

● Tutoring, Homework Club, Zero hour developed at MS, and enrichment club activities
developed.

8. Increase the use of student growth data for
student goal setting and planning

● Implementation of district wide data dashboard for all grade levels.
● Implementation of AIMSweb Plus for all grade levels.
● Fountas & Pinnell benchmarking for K-4
● Beginning stages of implementation of student led conferences in each building.

9. Develop and implement a professional
development plan based on BHSD goals and
identified staff growth areas

● A complete professional development plan was developed. This plan was developed based on a
needs assessment and staff input.

11. Each leadership team will develop a written
policy/procedure that outlines desired
homework practices that will be streamlined
across all grade levels in each building.

● Primary and Elementary developed homework practice and communicated through parent
newsletters.

● BLT developed guidelines for homework.

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



Goal #4:  Build a cohesive, vertically aligned curriculum
that supports teaching and learning.

Action Steps Progress
1. Professional Learning Communities meet

on regular schedule PreK-8
● District wide year long Professional Development plan created
● PreK-8 priority standards identified
● PreK-8 success criteria documents and rubrics under development for all subjects/disciplines
● Common formative assessments under development
● Accelerated ELA William & Mary Unit Training & differentiation training completed

2. District-wide PreK-8 curricular resource
renewal cycle created

● PLCs and administration work to ensure all resources are being reviewed according to cycle and
within appropriate timeframes in order to ensure consistent and regular evaluation of
district-provided resources

3. Creation and implementation of walk
through tool to observe instructional
practices

● Inter-rater reliability walk throughs conducted district wide
● Thorough and consistent review of walk through tool, modification of tool and alignment of

professional development  as necessary based on district goals

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



Goal #5:  Ensure long-term financial stability of the District
with resources aligned to priorities.

Action Steps Progress
1. Establish and maintain a fund balance to

revenue ratio of 25% or more.
● The district has been able to consistently maintain this fund balance ratio over the past few

years, with projects moving forward also being in a positive direction.

2. Assess energy usage and costs and plan to
maximize cost savings in these areas.

● The District has done extensive work in this area, reducing overall energy costs by hundreds of
thousands of dollars each year.  Money savings in this area has allowed for educational program
improvements.

3. Maintain a balanced budget in the operating
funds (Education, O&M, Transportation,
Working Cash).

● At the beginning of this strategic plan, the district was designated on the “Financial Watch” list
by the Illinois State Board of Education.  This is the lowest rating designation.  Over the past 5
years, through many changes/initiatives which have allowed for balanced budgeting practices,
the Big Hollow School District has now achieved financial “Recognition” status which is the
highest profile rating.

● Over the past few years, while the District was able to become more financially stable,
additionally staffing and program needs have been met.  As a result, the end-of-year accounting
is very near balanced with very little surplus or negative spending.

4. Develop a facility plan which will set long-term
priorities for future facility needs.

● Work has been done with consultants to prioritize major facility needs (such as roofs, parking
lot/sidewalk repairs, HVAC system upgrades...etc) which will become necessary in the next 10
years on the campus.

● The District has funds set aside in the O&M and Working Cash funds to assist with future
projects as they arise.

5. Improve the cash flow to eliminate the
reliance on tax anticipation warrants.

● The district is no longer reliant on tax anticipation warrants.

6. Provide property tax relief to BHSD38
residents.

● The long term debt commitment is a major driver of the high tax rate in the Big Hollow
community.  The District is in good position at this point to have the long-term debt completely
paid off after the 2023 tax levy.  This will reduce the taxpayer burden to Big Hollow School
District 38 by over 30%.

● At this time, there are no plans for the district to seek taxpayer  approval of additional long
term debt.

Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



Last Revised 07/06/2021

Exhibit 10



To: Big Hollow School District 38 Board of Education

From:   Bob Gold, Superintendent

Date: July 12, 2021

Re: American Rescue Plan (ARP)-- Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
Fund (ESSER) III Grant

Under the ARP - ESSER III fund, the Department of Education awards grants to State education
agencies (SEAs) for the purpose of providing local education agencies (LEAs) with emergency
relief funds to address the impact that Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) has had,
and continues to have, on elementary and secondary schools across the nation.  LEAs must
provide services to students and teachers in public schools as required under the American
Rescue Plan Act of 2021.

On July 7, 2021, BHSD38 was officially notified of receipt of $1,665,879 in funding through
ARP- ESSER III.  The funds are to be distributed as follows:

Amount Source Restrictions on use of funds

$1,017,177 ARP- ESSER III At least 20% of which must be to address loss of learning

$463,358 State-level
reservation

Learning Loss

$92,672 State-level
reservation

Summer Enrichment

$92,672 State-level
reservation

After-School

The eligible reimbursement period for use of funds is from March 13, 2020 through September
30, 2024.  Mr. Gold and Dr. Michelle Hetrovicz will work on the grant development and
submission in the coming weeks.  The following is a list of items that are anticipated to be
included within the grant at this time:

Exhibit 11



● Summer enrichment program costs
● Technology upgrades for both students and staff
● Reading and Math Specialists/Interventionists
● Imagine Learning personalized learning software for students K-8
● Two-year Amplify Science resource licenses and full adoption for students grades 5-8
● Classroom sound systems to enhance instructional environments
● Hiring of an additional registered nurse
● Guided math professional development for all teachers 1st-8th grade

Exhibit 11



Exhibit 12



  
June 4, 2021 

 
KEY TAKE-AWAYS AND ACTION ITEMS FROM THE LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

 
The Illinois General Assembly has ended its legislative session, leaving school districts 
and special education cooperatives with an exhaustive “to-do” list before the next school 
year begins.  We have summarized key take-aways and actions to take to prepare for this 
coming school year and beyond.  This summary also incorporates action items from 
Public Act 101-0654 (commonly known as the “Legislative Black Caucus Bill”) passed at 
the tail end of the prior legislative session that was signed into law on March 8, 2021.  The 
key action items we have identified fall into several categories.  For ease of access, click 
on the following to be taken to the content:  
 

• General School Law  
• COVID Learning-Recovery and Related Provisions 
• Policy Changes 
• Curriculum Changes 
• Isolated Time Out, Time Out and Physical Restraint 
• Special Education 
• Reporting Requirements 
• Student Rights 
• Personnel Issues 
• Labor Relations 

 
Note that the following list is based on bills that have passed both houses of the General 
Assembly as of June 1, 2021.  We believe these laws will be signed by Governor Pritzker 
in the next 60 days. If the Governor fails to sign a bill within that time, it will automatically 
become law. If the Governor issues a veto or amendatory veto in that time frame, we will 
continue to provide updates. 
 
General School Law 
 
Several provisions taking effect immediately upon becoming law (i.e., upon the 
Governor’s signature or in 60 days without a veto) will require schools to adjust day-to-
day operations: 
 

• Unstructured Play Time: Schools that do not have a recess program will need to 
develop an unstructured play program.  Schools that do offer recess will need to 
review the program for compliance with the requirements of a new provision 
(Section 27-6.3) of the School Code. All public schools are required to provide daily 
supervised, unstructured, child-directed play for all students in grades K-5 that 

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Highlight



2 
 

does not include the use of computers, tablets, or screens.  Play time shall not count 
toward physical education requirements, but play time is included in the required 
clock hours for attendance.  Students who attend school for 5 or more clock hours 
must be provided at least 30 minutes of play time.  For a school day consisting of 
less than 5 clock hours, play time must be at least 1/10 of an attendance day.  Play 
time may be divided into increments of 15 consecutive minutes. Time spent 
dressing or undressing for outdoor play time does not count towards daily play 
time. For students with disabilities, play time must comply with their IEPs or 
Section 504 plans.  All public schools must prohibit withholding of play time as a 
disciplinary or punitive action, except when a student's participation in play time 
poses an immediate threat to the safety of the student or others. School officials 
must make all reasonable efforts to resolve such threats and minimize the use of 
exclusion from play time to the greatest extent practicable. (SB0654) 
 

• Lockdown Drills: The requirements for a law enforcement lockdown drill in 
Section 20 of the School Safety Drill Act have been amended as follows: to ban use 
of simulations that mimic an actual school shooting or active shooter event; to 
require advance notification to school personnel, students, and parents; to require 
drills to be age appropriate and developmentally appropriate; to allow for the 
exemption of students and provision of alternative safety education to those 
students; to allow students to ask questions during the drill; and to include school-
based mental health professionals and trauma-informed approaches to addressing 
the well-being of students and school personnel.  (HB2400) 

 
• Suicide Prevention: Two separate bills will create new Sections 10-20.73 and 10-

20.75 of the School Code requiring school districts to provide information about 
suicide prevention to students.  Together, the bills provide that, effective 
immediately upon their enactment, each school district must provide contact 
information for the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline, the Crisis Text Line, and 
for those students in grades 6-12 either the Safe2Help Illinois Helpline or a local 
suicide prevention hotline or both, on the back of each student identification card 
or published on the district’s website, if the district does not issue student 
identification cards.  Effective July 1, 2022, for those students in grades 6-12, the 
information must be included in the student handbook and student planner, if 
either is printed by the district.  (HB0597; HB1778) 

 
• Sharing Student Records: Section 6 of the Illinois School Student Records Act has 

been amended to permit the use of an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) to share 
student records/information between an elementary school district and high 
school district without prior parent/guardian written consent, where the 
attendance boundaries of the elementary district and high school district overlap.  
The IGA must meet certain requirements provided in Section 6, including a parent 

Exhibit 13



3 
 

or guardian’s written expression that the student intends to enroll or has enrolled 
in the high school district.  (SB2434) 

 
• Expansion of E-Learning: The e-learning provisions in Section 10-20.56 of the 

School Code have been amended to extend a school board-approved e-learning 
program to include days that a school is closed because it serves as a polling place. 
Note that to maintain compliance with existing provisions of Section 10-20.56, 
authorization for e-learning days in these instances should be adopted by school 
board resolution.  The amendments will also require school districts to continue to 
provide the daily, regular rate of pay to contractors who provide educational 
support services (including, but not limited to, custodial, transportation, and food 
service providers) under contracts in effect on or before March 14, 2022, for any e-
learning day used because a school served as a polling place, unless the contracts 
otherwise address compensation for such e-learning days. (HB0004) 

 
• Menstrual Hygiene Products:  The requirements for menstrual hygiene products 

available for students in Section 10-20.63 of the School Code have been amended to 
require that schools make menstrual hygiene products available at no cost to 
students in bathrooms of every school building that is open for student use in 
grades 4 through 12 during the regular school day. (HB0156) 

 
COVID Learning-Recovery and Related Provisions 
 
The Illinois General Assembly has passed a number of bills that will take immediate 
effect, upon the Governor’s signature or 60 days without a veto, to support extended 
learning and teaching following the pandemic: 
 

• Special Education Transition Recovery Eligibility:  Pursuant to a new Section 14-
17 to the School Code, students with disabilities who reached the age of 22 within 
the time in which in-person instruction, services, or activities were suspended for 
a period of 3 or more months during the school year as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic are eligible to extend their special education eligibility and services 
through the end of the regular 2021-2022 school year. However, the extension of 
eligibility does not apply to students who are no longer residents of the school 
district. The IEP in effect when the student reached the age of 22 shall be 
implemented unless there is agreement that the goals should be revised to meet 
the student’s current transition needs. If the IEP placed the student in a private 
day or residential program, the school district is not required to resume his/her 
placement in that program if the student has aged out of the program or funding 
is unavailable. Each school district must provide notification of the availability of 
services to each student eligible for the extended services. This written notice must 
be sent by regular mail to the last known address of the student or the student’s 
parent or guardian within 30 days of the law’s effective date. (HB2748) 

Exhibit 13



4 
 

• Evidence-Based Funding Formula:  The evidence-based funding formula in 
Section 18-8.15 of the School Code is amended to adjust the definition of “Average 
Student Enrollment” for the 2020-2021 school year to refer to the greater of the 
enrollment for the 2020-2021 or 2019-2020 school year.  The adjusted definition will 
apply to calculations for Fiscal Years 2022-2024. (SB0813) 
 

• Summer School and the TRS Earnings Cap:  A somewhat related amendment to 
the Illinois Pension Code may encourage expansion of summer school programs by 
exempting from the TRS 6% earnings cap any salary increases that result from 
teaching summer school on or after May 1, 2021 and before September 15, 2022. 
(SB1646) 
 

• Employment of Retired Teachers:  Other amendments to the Illinois Pension Code 
expand the permitted employment of retired teachers in a subject shortage area 
through June 2024, and allow such employment without meeting required job 
posting requirements if a retired teacher is replacing a teacher who is unable to 
continue employment because of documented illness, injury or disability that 
occurred after being hired by the school district.  (HB2569) Additionally, retirees 
continue to be permitted to work 120 paid days or 600 paid hours in each school 
year through June 30, 2023, without impairing retirement status or TRS benefits. 
(SB1989)  
 

• Expansion of Freedom School Grant Program: Somewhat related to COVID 
recovery measures, Section 2-3.186 of the School Code will be amended to expand 
the grant program created under the Legislative Black Caucus Bill to improve 
educational outcomes of Black students in alignment with the Freedom School 
model established during the Civil Rights movement.  That grant program will 
now support programs to improve educational outcomes to all historically 
disadvantaged students, including African American students and other students 
of color (subject to appropriation). (SB0820) 

 
Policy Changes 
 
School districts will be required to implement the following policies when the bills below 
are signed by the Governor or after 60 days without a veto: 
 

• Student Absences:  
 

• Effective immediately, a school board must adopt written policies related 
to absences and missed homework or class assignments due to a student’s 
pregnancy under new Section 10-20.73 of the School Code.  (HB3272) 
 

Exhibit 13



5 
 

• Effective immediately, under amended Section 26-1 of the School Code a 
district superintendent must develop and distribute to schools appropriate 
procedures for student absences for religious reasons, how schools are 
notified of a student’s impending absence for religious reasons, and 
procedures under 26-2b of the School Code for allowing students to make up 
examinations, study or work requirements that the student has missed 
because of the observance of a religious holiday. (HB0169) 

 
• Effective July 1, 2022, every school district must develop an absenteeism 

and truancy policy that is communicated annually to parents, updated 
every two years, and filed with ISBE and the regional superintendent of 
schools under new Section 22-90 of the School Code.  Requirements for the 
policy are set forth in the new Section 22-90 and require the policy to define 
a valid reason for absence, a process for identifying causes of unexcused 
absenteeism, the identification of supportive services available to truant or 
chronically truant children, and incorporation of chronic absenteeism 
provisions under 26-19 of the School Code.  (SB0605) 
 

• Expanded Restorative Measures for Bullying Prevention Policy and Procedures: 
Effective immediately, the amended Section 27-23.7 of the School Code provides 
that “restorative measures” required in board bullying prevention policies and 
procedures must include school-based alternatives to exclusionary discipline that 
increase student accountability if bullying is based on religion, race, ethnicity, or 
any other category that is identified in the Illinois Human Rights Act. (SB0673) 
 

• Anaphylactic Policy: Effective July 1, 2021, a new Section 2-3.182 of the School Code 
requires ISBE, in consultation with IDPH, to establish an anaphylactic policy for 
school districts that sets forth guidelines and procedures to be followed both for 
the prevention of anaphylaxis and during a medical emergency resulting from 
anaphylaxis. At least 6 months after the law’s effective date, ISBE must forward 
the anaphylactic policy to the school board of each Illinois school district. Each 
school district must implement or update its anaphylactic policy in accordance 
with ISBE’s policy within 6 months of receiving the anaphylactic policy from ISBE. 
At least once each calendar year, each school district must send notice to the 
parents or guardians of all children under the care of a school to make them aware 
of the anaphylactic policy. The notice must include contact information for 
parents/guardians to engage further with the school to learn more about 
individualized aspects of the policy. (HB0102) 

 
• Grooming Behavior as Part of Child Sex Abuse Policy and Training: Section 10-

23.13 of the School Code will be amended to provide that by no later than July 1, 
2022, each school board must adopt and implement a policy addressing sexual 
abuse of children that must include an age-appropriate and evidence-informed 

Exhibit 13



6 
 

curriculum for pre-K through 12 students.  The policy and all training materials 
and instruction must include a definition of prohibited grooming behaviors and 
boundary violations for school personnel and how to report these behaviors.  
School district must provide school personnel with annual child sex abuse training 
as set forth in Section 10-23.13 by no later than January 31 of each year.  (HB3461) 

 
• Amended Suicide Prevention Policy: Section 2-3.166 of the School Code (a/k/a Ann 

Marie’s Law) will be amended to provide that effective July 1, 2022, the ISBE model 
suicide prevention and awareness policy, and any policy adopted by a school 
board, must include methods of intervention for “students identified as being at 
increased risk of suicide,” which now includes students who: suffer from a mental 
health disorder; suffer from a substance abuse disorder; engage in self-harm or 
have previously attempted suicide; reside in an out-of-home placement; are 
experiencing homelessness; are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or  questioning 
(LGBTQ); are bereaved by suicide; or have a medical condition or certain types of 
disabilities. (HB0577) 
 

• Automatic Accelerated Placement Policy: By no later than the 2023-2024 school 
year, under provisions included in the Legislative Black Caucus Bill, each public 
school must allow for automatic enrollment of students into the next most rigorous 
level of advanced coursework, if the student meets or exceeds State standards in 
English language arts, math, or science.  These requirements are now expanded 
under amended Section 14A-32 of the School Code to provide that the next most 
rigorous level of advanced coursework in English or math for a student entering 
12th grade must be a dual credit course, an Advanced Placement course, or an 
International Baccalaureate course. (SB0820) 

 
• Parenting/Domestic or Sexual Violence Policies: A new article, i.e., Article 26A, 

Children and Students Who Are Parents, Expectant Parents, or Victims of 
Domestic or Sexual Violence, has been added to the School Code. Pursuant to 
Section 26A-20, by no later than July 1, 2024 and every 2 years thereafter, each 
school district will be required to review and revise existing policies and 
procedures that may act as a barrier to the immediate enrollment, reenrollment, 
attendance, graduation and success in school of any student who is a student 
parent, expectant student parent, or victim of domestic or sexual violence or any 
policies or procedures that may re-victimize students or may compromise a 
criminal investigation.  A school district must adopt new policies and procedures, 
as needed, to implement this Section 26A-20 and to ensure that immediate and 
effective steps are taken to respond to students who are student parents, expectant 
parents, or victims of domestic or sexual violence. The district’s policy must be 
consistent with ISBE’s model policy and procedures.  Additionally, Section 26A-
25 requires each school district to adopt one procedure to resolve complaints of 
violations of Article 26A on or before July 1, 2024, and Section 26A-30, effective 

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Highlight



7 
 

July 1, 2025, requires each school district to develop a policy to protect the 
confidentiality of a student’s status and related experiences as a parent, expectant 
parent, or victim of domestic or sexual violence or a student who is named a 
perpetrator of domestic or sexual violence. (Please note that this law contains 
conflicting dates, which may be a basis for further legislative clarification.) 
(HB3223) 
 

• Suspension/Expulsion Policy:  Under amended Section 10-22.6 of the School Code, 
effective July 1, 2025, a board policy providing that a student who is suspended 
for expelled for any reasons must complete the entire term of suspension or 
expulsion before being admitted into the district, must also include a provision 
allowing for consideration of any mitigating factors including, but not limited, to, 
a student’s status as a parent, expectation parent, or victim of domestic of sexual 
violence.  (HB3223) 

 
Curriculum Changes 
 
Effective Immediately (upon Governor Pritzker’s signature or 60 days without a veto): 
 

• Comprehensive Personal Health and Safety and Comprehensive Sexual Health 
Education Program: Pursuant to a new Section 27-9.1a of the School Code, all classes 
that teach comprehensive personal health and safety and comprehensive sexual 
health education program must be age and developmentally appropriate, 
medically accurate, complete, culturally appropriate, inclusive and trauma 
informed, as those terms are defined by law, in addition to meeting other specified 
criteria and content.  A student’s parent/guardian may opt a student out of the 
curriculum.  A new Section 27-9.1b of the School Code will permit school districts 
to offer age and developmentally appropriate education in grades K – 12 on 
consent and how to give and receive consent.  (SB0818)   
 

• Sex Education:  Under amended Section 27-9.1 of the School Code, required sex 
education in grades 6 – 12 will be mandated to include an age-appropriate 
discussion about sexting per the added definition of sexting.  The discussion must 
include exploration of areas identified under Section 27-9.1, including 
identification of individuals who can be contacted for assistance with issues, 
concerns, or problems. (HB0024) 
 

• Computer Literacy Skills:  All school districts must ensure that students receive 
developmentally appropriate opportunities to gain computer literacy skills 
beginning in elementary school.  (P.A. 101-0654) 
 
 

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Highlight

bobgold
Highlight



8 
 

• Drug Abuse:  Per amendments to Section 27-13.2 of the School Code, instruction, 
study and discussion will be required in grades K-8 on effective methods for the 
prevention and avoidance of drugs and the dangers of opioid and substance 
abuse. (HB1162) 
 

• Black History:  Section 27-20.4 of the s School Code addressing Black History study 
has been expanded to include the history of the pre-enslavement of Black people  
from 3,000 BCE to AD 1619, the study of the reasons why Black people came to be 
enslaved, and the study of the American civil rights renaissance. (P.A. 101-0654) 

 
• U.S. History:  Under amended Section 27-21 of the School Code, the teaching of 

history of the United States will be required to include contributions made to 
society by Americans of different faith practices. (SB0564) 
 

• Financial Literacy:  Under amended Section 27-22 of the School Code, beginning 
with incoming freshmen for the 2021-2022 school year and each school year 
thereafter, one semester of social studies, or part of one semester, may include a 
financial literacy course. (SB1830) 

 
• Forensic Speech:  Under amended Section 27-22 of the School Code, forensic speech 

may be used to satisfy the one-year requirement for music, art, foreign language, 
or vocational education required for a high school diploma.  (SB2354) 

 
• Naturalization and Citizenship:  Under a new Section 27-23.15 of the School Code, 

every public high school may include in its curriculum a unit of instruction about 
the process of naturalization, including content from the components of the 
naturalization test administered by the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services.  
Each school board will determine the minimum amount of instructional time. (HB 
3281) 

 
Beginning with the 2022-2023 school year and later, additional curriculum changes will 
take effect upon these bills being signed by the Governor or in 60 days without a veto: 
 

• Media Literacy:  Under a new Section 27-20.08 of the School Code, public high 
schools will be required to include a unit on media literacy in its curriculum. 
(HB0234) 
 

• Asian American History:  Under a new Section 27-20.8 of the School Code, every 
public elementary school and high school will be required to include a unit of 
instruction studying the events of Asian American history. (HB0376) 
 
 

Exhibit 13



9 
 

• Higher Education Courses:  The Legislative Black Caucus bill required the Board 
of Higher Education to review all courses that each Illinois public university 
requires or recommends high school students take in order to be admitted to the 
university and into a specific academic major, college or department.  Every public 
high school will be required to provide access to each course identified in this 
review to any of its students who request to enroll in the course. If the public high 
school is unable to offer the course, the public high school must find an alternative 
way to offer the course to the student, which may include partnering with another 
school district, a community college district, an institution of higher education, or 
some other course provider. (P.A. 101-0654) 

 
• Computer Literacy:  Students entering the 9th grade will be required to 

successfully complete one year of a course, which may be a course in English, 
social studies, or any other subject, that includes intensive instruction in computer 
literacy.  However, this requirement does not apply to students with disabilities 
whose course of study is determined by their IEPs. (P.A. 101-0654) 

 
• Computer Science:  Every public high school will be required to provide an 

opportunity for every high school student to take at least one computer science 
course aligned to ISBE’s rigorous learning standards.   “Computer science” is 
defined as the study of computers and algorithms, including their principles, their 
hardware and software designs, their implementation, and their impact on society. 
The term does not include the study of everyday uses of computers and computer 
applications, such as keyboarding or accessing the Internet. (P.A. 101-0654) 
 

• Laboratory Science:  Beginning with the 2024-2025 school year, students entering 
the 9th grade must successfully complete two years of laboratory science, in 
addition to other course requirements, as a prerequisite to receiving a high school 
diploma. (P.A. 101-0654) 
 

• Foreign Language:  Beginning with the 2028-2029 school year, students entering 
the 9th grade must successfully complete 2 years of foreign language courses, 
which may include American Sign Language, in addition to other course 
requirements, as a prerequisite to receiving a high school diploma.  A student may 
choose a third year of foreign language to satisfy the requirement of one year of 
(A) music, (B) art, (C) foreign language (including American Sign Language), or 
(D) vocational education.  (P.A. 101-0654) 

 
Isolated Time Out, Time Out and Physical Restraint:  
 
If this bill is signed by the Governor or in 60 days if no veto: 

Exhibit 13



10 
 

• Effective immediately, Section 10-20.33 of the School Code is amended to align with 
ISBE rules already in effect for use of for isolated time out, time out and physical 
restraint, stating that schools: 

• May use isolated time out, time out and physical restraint only under 
certain circumstances; 
 

• Are prohibited from using mechanical restraint and chemical restraint, as 
defined; 

 
• Are limited in using prone restraint to specific circumstances which phase 

out after the 2021-2022 school year, subject to further restriction by ISBE by 
rule; 

 
• Are prohibited from depriving a student of necessities, as defined, during 

time out/isolated time out; 
 

• Must give notice to the student’s parent/guardian no later than 2 school 
days after incident and, if requested, convene a meeting with school 
personnel within 2 school days of the parent/guardian request; 

 
• Must provide information to parents and guardians on standards, parent 

and student rights, and complaint process; and 
 

• Must have written procedures on use of isolated time out, time out and 
physical restraint (if board policy permits the use of isolated time out, time 
out and physical restraint). 

 
• Also effective immediately, ISBE is required to adopt emergency rules for isolated 

time out, time out and physical restraint and corresponding documentation and 
reporting requirements when such interventions are used – including a complaint 
procedure, training requirements, and progressive enforcement actions.   
 

• Within 90 days of the law’s effective date, ISBE must establish goals for a systemic 
reduction and eventual elimination of the use of isolated time out, time out and 
physical restraint.  ISBE must establish a system of ongoing review, auditing, and 
monitoring of schools’ compliance with documentation and reporting 
requirements and meeting ISBE’s established goals. 
 

• School districts and special education cooperatives will have 3 years after the 
effective date to meet the established reduction target(s) for the use of isolated time 
out, time out and physical.  Each school board must:   
 

Exhibit 13



11 
 

• Create a time out and physical restraint oversight team;  
 

• Develop a school-specific plan for reduction and eventual elimination of 
time out, isolated time out, and physical restraint; 

 
• Develop procedures to implement the plan; 

 
• Submit a report to ISBE each year for 3 years after the effective date, unless 

exempt; and 
 

• Notify parents and guardians that the plan and reports are available for 
review.  

 
• ISBE is authorized to create a grant program to help school districts and special 

education cooperatives implement school-wide, culturally sensitive, and trauma-
informed practices, positive behavioral interventions and supports, and 
restorative practices within a MTSS, for the purposes of reducing the need for 
interventions such as time out, isolated time out, and physical restraint. (HB0219) 

 
Special Education 
 
The General Assembly has passed a broad range of new statutory provisions impacting 
students with disabilities upon the Governor’s signature or in 60 days without a veto: 

 
• Transition Planning:  

 
• Under amended Section 14-8.03 of the School Code, effective immediately, as 

a component of transition planning a school district must provide the 
student with information about the school district’s career and technical 
education (CTE) opportunities and post-secondary CTE opportunities.  A 
high school student with an IEP may enroll in the district's CTE program at 
any time if participation in a CTE program is consistent with the student's 
transition goals.  Also, a CTE coordinator may be an additional necessary 
IEP team member for transition planning.   
 

• The bill will also amend the Dual Credit Quality Act to provide that a 
partnership agreement between a school district and community college 
district to offer dual credit coursework must include a collaborative process 
and criteria by which a school district and a community college district 
must work to ensure that individual students with disabilities have access 
to dual credit courses, provided that those students are able to meet the 
criteria for entry into a dual credit course.  Through the process and criteria, 
a student with disabilities must have access to supplementary aids and 

Exhibit 13



12 
 

accommodations included in the student’s IEP or Section 504 plan while 
accessing a dual credit course on a high school campus.  A student must 
have access to supplementary aids and accommodations provided in the 
partnership agreement while accessing a dual credit course on a 
community college campus.  In addition, within one year of the effective 
date, each community college district, in partnership with the appropriate 
high school, will be required to amend its dual credit plan to ensure access 
to dual credit courses by students with disabilities.  (HB3950) 
 

• Extended Eligibility Age Out: Effective immediately, Section 14-1.02 of the School 
Code is amended to extend eligibility of students with disabilities for special 
education services through the end of the school year in which they turn age 22 (unless 
they graduate with a regular high school diploma or are otherwise found ineligible 
prior to such time). (HB0040) 

 
• Out-of-State Placements: Pursuant to amended Section 14-7.02 of the School Code, 

effective immediately, prior to placing a student in an out-of-State special 
education residential facility, the school district must refer to the student or the 
student's parent/guardian the option to place the student in a special education 
residential facility located within Illinois, if any, that provides treatment and 
services comparable to those provided by the out-of-state facility.  Annually, the 
school district must review the student’s placement in an out-of-state special 
education residential facility. As part of the review, the school district must refer 
to the student or student’s parent/guardian the option to place the student in a 
comparable in-State special education residential facility, if any. (HB0041) 
 

• PUNS Guide: Pursuant to amended Section 2-3.163 of the School Code, effective 
immediately, ISBE, through school districts, must provide parents and guardians 
of students with disabilities a copy of the Department of Human Services' guide, 
Understanding PUNS: A Guide to Prioritization for Urgency of Need for Services, each 
year at the student’s annual review IEP meeting. (HB0290) 
 

• Student Residency: Effective immediately, the residency provisions for students 
with disabilities in Section 14-1.11a of the School Code are amended to allow the 
State Superintendent to determine that the location of a student’s parent or 
guardian is unknown after considering information submitted from the school 
district that last enrolled the student or from the school or special education facility 
providing special education and related services to the student.  The submitted 
information must include an affidavit from the district’s superintendent or 
facility’s director with specific information provided in Section 14-1.11a.  (HB3906) 
 

• Extended Early Intervention Eligibility: Effective January 1, 2022, children who 
receive early intervention services prior to their third birthday and who are found 

Exhibit 13



13 
 

eligible for an IEP and whose birthday falls between May 1 and August 31 may 
continue to receive early intervention services until the beginning of the school 
year following their third birthday.  This amendment changed the effective date 
of this provision under the Early Intervention Services System Act, which was added 
as part of the Legislative Black Caucus Bill.  (SB0820) 
 

• Accessibility of Third-Party Online Curriculum: Under a new Section 10-20.75 of 
the School Code, effective August 1, 2022, if a school district makes a third-party 
website or web service’s online curriculum available to its enrolled students, the 
district must require that the third-party website/web service complies with Level 
AA of the of the World Wide Web Consortium's Web Content Accessibility 
Guidelines 2.1, or any revised version of those guidelines, to ensure that the 
content is readily accessible to persons with disabilities. (HB0026) 

 
Reporting Requirements 
 
Various bills impose new requirements for ISBE and school districts to report to parents 
and the public on varying issues upon the Governor’s signature or in 60 days without a 
veto): 
 

• High-Cost Special Education Funding Commission:  Effective immediately, a new 
Section 14-17 is added to the Illinois School Code to create the High-Cost Special 
Education Funding Commission for the purpose of making recommendations to 
the Governor and Legislature for an alternative funding structure for high-cost 
special education in Illinois.  The Commission is directed to issue its report with 
recommendations by no later than November 30, 2021. (SB0517) 
 

• Educational Technology Reporting: All school districts must submit to ISBE or its 
designee an annual report that must include, at a minimum, information regarding 
educational technology capacity and policies, including device availability for 
students, school-based access and infrastructure, professional learning and 
training opportunities, and documentation of developmentally appropriate 
computer literacy instruction embedded in the district's curriculum at each grade 
level.  While effective immediately, the annual reporting system has yet to be 
implemented. (P.A. 101-0654) 
 

• Required Coursework for University Admission: Effective immediately, a school 
district must make available the required Board of Higher Education’s review of 
the universities’ courses to students in grades 8 through 12 and their parents or 
guardians before the students’ course schedules are finalized for each student’s 
particular grade levels. (P.A. 101-0654) 
 
 

Exhibit 13



14 
 

• School Report Card:  Under amended Section 10-17a of the School Code ~ 
 

• Effective July 1, 2022, the school report card will be required to include the 
number of teachers who are National Board Certified Teachers 
disaggregated by race and ethnicity. (HB2438) 
 

• Beginning with the 2022-2023 school year, the school report card will be 
required to include data on the number of reported instances of violence 
that occurred on school grounds or during school-related activities and that 
resulted in an out-of-school suspension, expulsion, or removal to an 
alternative setting.  (SB0633)  

 
• Effective immediately, the annual school report card must also include the 

number of students who graduate from a bilingual or English learner 
program and who graduate from, transfer from or otherwise leave bilingual 
programs.  (SB2043) 

 
• Effective immediately the annual school report card must identify high 

school dropout rate by grade level. (SB2043) 
 

The annual school report card is also delayed from October 31 to December 31 for school 
years in which the Governor has declared a disaster due to a public health emergency 
pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act. (SB2043) 
 

• School Support Personnel:  Pursuant to a new Section 10-20.75 of the School Code, 
no later than December 1, 2022 and each December 1 thereafter, each school district 
will be required to report to ISBE the following information with regard to the 
school district as of October 1st of each year: the total number of personnel with a 
school support personnel endorsement and, for each endorsement area, the 
number of personnel employed full time, part time, and by a special education 
cooperative providing services to the students in the school district; and the total 
number of students enrolled in the school district and, of that total, the number of 
students with an IEP or Section 504 plan.  This information must be available on 
the district’s website as well. (SB0812) 
 

Student Rights 
 
The legislative changes in this area focus on students’ religious and cultural rights, rights 
of students who are victims of domestic or sexual violence, rights of students who are 
parents or expectant parents, and the mental health of students. 
Effective immediately: 
 

Exhibit 13



15 
 

• Team Uniforms:  Religious/Cultural Modesty:  Under a new Section 10-20.73 of 
the School Code, a school board must allow a student athlete to modify his or her 
athletic or team uniform for the purpose of modesty or in accordance with the 
requirements of his or her religion or his or her cultural values or modesty 
preferences. (HB0120) 
 

• P.E.   Religious Fasting:  Under amended Section 27-6 of the School Code, a student 
must be excused from physical activity components of a physical education course 
during a period of religious fasting if the principal receives written notice from the 
parents that the student is participating in religious fasting.  (HB160) 
 

• Religious Absence:  Under amended Section 26-1 of the School Code, a valid cause 
for a student’s absence from school includes religious reasons, including 
observance of a religious holiday or participation in religious instruction, or 
because the tenets of the student’s religion forbid secular activity during that day 
or part of day.   The district’s superintendent must develop and distribute 
appropriate procedures regarding a student’s absences for religious reasons, how 
schools are notified of a student’s impending absence, and the requirements to 
give the student an opportunity to make up work and/or assessments.  (HB0169) 
 

• Mental/Behavioral Health Absence:  Under amended Sections 26-1 and 26-2a of 
the School Code, a valid cause for a student’s absence from school includes the 
mental or behavioral health of the student, up to 5 days, for which the student 
need not provide a medical note.  The student must be given the opportunity to 
make up any schoolwork missed during the mental or behavioral health absence.  
After the second mental health day, the student may be referred to the appropriate 
school support personnel.  (SB1577, HB0576). 
 

• Dress Code:  Effective January 1, 2022, a school uniform or dress code policy shall 
not include or apply to hairstyles, including hair styles historically associated with 
race or ethnicity, or hair texture under amended Section 10-22.25b of the School 
Code. (SB0817) 
 

• Parenting/Victims of Domestic or Sexual Violence:  Under a current effective date 
of July 1, 2025 ~ 

 
• A valid cause for absence will include a medical or therapeutic 

appointment, appointment with a victim services provide, or for a student 
who is an expectant parent, or parent, or victim of domestic or sexual 
violence, the fulfillment of a parenting responsibility or addressing 
circumstances resulting from domestic or sexual violence under amended 
Section 26-2a of the School Code.   

Exhibit 13



16 
 

• The scope of home instruction for such students is expanded by amended 
Section 10-22.6a of the School Code.   
 

• A new Article 26A of the School Code will take effect to protect the rights of 
children and students who are parents, expectant parents or victims of 
domestic or sexual violence.  This Article includes, among other 
protections, a reporting mechanism and complaint resolution procedure 
that maintains required confidentiality of a student’s status and related 
experiences as a parent, expectant parent, or victim of domestic or sexual 
violence or a student who is named a perpetrator of domestic or sexual 
violence. (HB3223) 

 
• Suspension Review/Expulsion Hearing:  Effective July 1, 2025, under amended 

Section 10-22.6 of the School Code, in all suspension reviews or expulsion hearings: 
 

• Students must be permitted to present mitigating evidence, including his 
or status as a parent, expectant parent, or victim of domestic or sexual 
violence. (HB3223) 
 

• Students must be permitted to have a representative or support person of 
their choice represent them throughout the proceedings, provided such 
representative or support person complies with any rules of the district’s 
hearing process. (HB3223) 

 
• The proceeding must be conducted independently from an ongoing 

criminal investigation or proceeding. (HB3223) 
 

• Criminal investigations or proceedings may not be a factor in school 
disciplinary decisions. (HB3223) 

 
• If the proceedings involve allegations of sexual violence by the student, the 

student or the student’s representative must not directly question or have 
direct contact with the alleged victim.  The student or the student’s 
representative may, at the discretion of the board or its hearing officer, 
suggest questions to be posed to the alleged victim.  (HB3223) 

 
• Additionally, effective immediately, schools must invite a representative 

from a local mental health agency to consult with the school board at 
meetings to consider suspension or expulsion whenever there is evidence 
that mental illness may be the cause of a student’s suspension or expulsion. 
(SB2043) 

 
 

Exhibit 13



17 
 

Personnel Issues 
 
Legislation addressing personnel issues continues to focus on use of sick leave and 
teacher evaluation, among other issues.  Upon the Governor’s signature or in 60 days 
without a veto, the following actions will be required: 
 

• Paid Sick Leave:  Effective immediately, the sick leave provisions of Section 24-6 
of the  School Code will be amended to permit employees to use up to 30 days of 
paid sick leave for birth of a child that is not dependent on recovery from 
childbirth, that can be taken absent medical certification, that can be taken anytime 
within the 12-month period following birth of the child and that may not be 
diminished by any period of school break that occurs during the use of sick leave.  
Adoption leave is limited to 30 days but need not be used consecutively. (HB0816) 
 

• FMLA:  Pursuant to a new Section 24-6.4 of the School Code, an employee who has 
been employed for at least 12 months and who has worked at least 1,000 hours in 
the previous 12-month period will be eligible for FMLA leave on the same terms 
and conditions as provided under the Federal FMLA. (HB0012) 
 

• Teacher Evaluations:  By no later than September 1, 2022, each school district 
teacher evaluation plan will be required to ensure that each tenured teacher who 
receives an excellent or proficient rating is evaluated at least once in the 3 years 
following the rating (versus the current 2-year requirement) and requires 
implementation of an informal observation plan under amended Section 24A-5 of 
the School Code.  (HB0018) 
 

• Work Authorization Status:  Effective immediately, the Illinois Human Rights Act 
will be amended to prohibit discrimination in employment based on work 
authorization status, specifically defined to include discrimination based on the 
specific status or term of status that accompanies legal work authorization. “Work 
authorization status” is defined as the status of being a person born outside of the 
United States, and not a U.S. citizen, who is authorized by the federal government 
to work in the United States. (HB0121) 
 

• Sexual Harassment Training:  Required sexual harassment training for licensed 
personnel will be permitted through training provided by the licensee’s employer, 
the Department of Human Rights, or any authorized continuing education 
provider under the amended Department of Professional Regulation Law. (SB1079) 

 
Labor Relations 
 
Upon the Governor’s signature or in 60 days without a veto, the Illinois Educational Labor 
Relations Act will be amended to allow a union to submit electronic documentation as a 

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Highlight



18 
 

showing of interest in support of a representation petition and to allow for electronic 
secret ballot elections.  In addition, a new unfair labor practice will be recognized where 
an employer promises, threatens or takes any action to permanently replace an employee 
who has engaged in a strike under the Act or where an employer discriminates against 
an employee who has returned to work following participation in or support of a strike, 
or to lockout, suspend or otherwise withhold employment from employees in order to 
influence collective bargaining prior to a strike.  (HB2521)  
 
We recognize that this is a lot of information to absorb!  If you have any questions about 
this update or other legal issues, please contact any of our attorneys at 630.313.4750.  
 

 

Exhibit 13



June 2021 Employment Report

Approve employment of Ashleigh Wonsil, Middle School ELL Teacher, effective August 2021.

Approve personnel change for Lisa Romero from 6th Grade Science Teacher to Middle School
LOP Special Education Teacher, effective August 2021.

Approve the employment of Amanda Bergquist, Elementary ELL Teacher, effective August
2021.

Approve personnel change for Jessica Lardizabal from School Nurse to Certified School Nurse,
effective August 18, 2021.

Approve FMLA for Courtney Wegrzyn, Middle School Reading Specialist, effective
approximately September 23, 2021 and lasting 12 weeks.

Approve the employment of Thelma Allen, Middle School Bilingual Teacher, effective August
2021.

Approve personnel change for Jackie Laske from Bus Driver to Business Office Assistant to the
Transportation Department, effective July 13, 2021.

Approve the employment of Tracy Bauske as Middle School Lunch Monitor, effective August 17,
2021.

Approve the employment of Jodie Ruden as Middle School 6th Grade Science Teacher,
effective August 18, 2021.

Approve the personnel change for Bonnie Hayse from Education Support Staff to Middle School
Special Education Support, effective August 18, 2021.

Approve the employment of Holly Gold as transportation driver effective July 13, 2021.

Approve the personnel change for Samantha Rusciolelli from 3rd Grade Teacher to
Kindergarten Teacher, effective August 2021.

Approve the employment of Gail Peterson as Middle School Paraprofessional effective August
18, 2021.

Approve the employment of Katie Boyd as PreK Teacher effective August 18, 2021.

Approve the employment of Lauren Johnson as Middle School Paraprofessional effective
August 18, 2021.

Exhibit 14



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 14



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box

melissamorley
Text Box
salary will be $60,583 + an additional $2000 as a hard to fill position stipend



Exhibit 14



Exhibit 14



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 14



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Form: New Hire Form Name: King, Victorene Lee Employee Type: DIR OF DATA Building Code: MS

BIG HOLLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #38

New Hire Information Form

BACKGROUND

Name

Gail Peterson

Street  

22 Covington Road

CityFox LakeStateILZip60020

Telephone 847-912-6323   

 

Email Address   

gailsmail56@gmail.com

 

ASSIGNMENT

 

CERTIFIED:  Administrator:         Teacher:    If Teacher Please select ~  Gen Ed:     SPED:     ELL:  

 

NON-CERTIFIED:  Custodian:     Food Service:       Lunch Monitor:  

 

Nurse:      Paraprofessional:  Yes     Secretary:     Substitute:  

 

Technology:      Transportation:      Other:  

Building: Middle Grade/Area: Sped

Start Date: August 18 BOE Approval Date:  * Board Approval is pending the completion of fingerprints, current physical, TB test, and all required paperwork

 

REFERENCES CONTACTED (list 2)

Name:  Dr. Holz Title:  Professor

Name:  Sherry Engstrom Title:  Professor

BA      BA+15           MA                MA+15              MA+30  

 

Years Credited  Step  

BudgetCode 

Total Years Experience 0  Salary/Hourly Rate14.35 (may be adjusted if circumstances require)

Comments:  

 

Technology:

 

User ID:  (firstlast)          Password: (employee will change upon first login) 

 

 

 

To be completed by New Hire:

 

Signature of New Hire:

Date:  

07/08/2021 11:37:09 AM     

Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Form: New Hire Form Name: Janusz, Lenayn M. Employee Type: PRINCIPAL Building Code: PR

BIG HOLLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #38

New Hire Information Form

BACKGROUND

Name

Katie J. Boyd

Street  

28627 Wagon Trail Rd.

CityLakemoorStateILZip60051

Telephone 18153827973   

 

Email Address   

kjboyd13@att.net

 

ASSIGNMENT

 

CERTIFIED:  Administrator:         Teacher:  Yes  If Teacher Please select ~  Gen Ed:  Yes   SPED:  Yes   ELL:  Yes

 

NON-CERTIFIED:  Custodian:     Food Service:       Lunch Monitor:  

 

Nurse:      Paraprofessional:       Secretary:     Substitute:  

 

Technology:      Transportation:      Other:  

Building: Primary Grade/Area: PreK

Start Date: August 18, 2021 BOE Approval Date:  * Board Approval is pending the completion of fingerprints, current physical, TB test, and all required paperwork

 

REFERENCES CONTACTED (list 2)

Name:  Kirsten Innes Title:  Media/Information Specialist

Name:  Rebecca Johnson Title:  Cooperating Teacher

BA Yes     BA+15           MA                MA+15              MA+30  

 

Years Credited 0 Step 1 

BudgetCode 

10-100-1225-1100

Total Years Experience 0  Salary/Hourly Rate$42,492 (may be adjusted if circumstances require)

Comments:  

 

Technology:

 

User ID:  (firstlast)          Password: (employee will change upon first login) 

 

 

 

To be completed by New Hire:

 

Signature of New Hire:

Date:  

07/08/2021  2:44:31 PM     

Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



Form: New Hire Form Name: King, Victorene Lee Employee Type: DIR OF DATA Building Code: MS

BIG HOLLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #38

New Hire Information Form

BACKGROUND

Name

Lauren Johnson

Street  

249 Spring Valley Way

CityRound LakeStateILZip60073

Telephone 847-924-4447   

 

Email Address   

ldog805@gmail.com

 

ASSIGNMENT

 

CERTIFIED:  Administrator:         Teacher:    If Teacher Please select ~  Gen Ed:     SPED:     ELL:  

 

NON-CERTIFIED:  Custodian:     Food Service:       Lunch Monitor:  

 

Nurse:      Paraprofessional:  Yes     Secretary:     Substitute:  

 

Technology:      Transportation:      Other:  

Building: Middle Grade/Area: Sped

Start Date: August 18 BOE Approval Date:  * Board Approval is pending the completion of fingerprints, current physical, TB test, and all required paperwork

 

REFERENCES CONTACTED (list 2)

Name:  Dave Evans Title:  Colleague

Name:  Erin Marcus Title:  Supervisor

BA      BA+15           MA                MA+15              MA+30  

 

Years Credited  Step  

BudgetCode 

Total Years Experience   Salary/Hourly Rate14.35 (may be adjusted if circumstances require)

Comments:  

 

Technology:

 

User ID:  (firstlast)          Password: (employee will change upon first login) 

 

 

 

To be completed by New Hire:

 

Signature of New Hire:

Date:  

07/08/2021  2:53:11 PM     

Exhibit 14

melissamorley
Text Box



www.bighollow.us
Mr. Robert Gold, Superintendent

Date: July 12 , 2020

To: Big Hollow School District Board of Education

From: Robert B. Gold, Superintendent

Re: Health/Dental/Vision/Life Insurance Rates

Over the past several months we have worked closely with Julianne Baron from Baron & Associates, Inc.
in seeking health insurance plan quotes.  At the end of June we received preliminary quotes from United
Healthcare, Cigna, Blue Cross Blue Shield, and Aetna.

After several negotiations, we have now received finalized quotes from each of the insurance providers.  I
then met with our Board health insurance committee along with members of our Big Hollow Federation
of Teachers to discuss the quotes and provide a recommendation. At this time, I am recommending that
we continue with Cigna as our health insurance provider for the 2021-2022 school year.  We will receive a
2.5% increase over current costs for health insurance premiums.  However, they are also going to credit us
$35,000 for remaining a Cigna customer for the coming year.

Even with a 2.5% increase in the coming year, we are still experiencing lower costs than we did in 2017
(prior to joining Cigna).  The following is a short summary of health insurance costs since shifting to
Cigna in 2018:

● 2018-2019
○ Approximately $75,000 savings from prior years’ cost with United Health Care

● 2019-2020
○ The rate decreased 3% along with a $42,000 refund due to low costs in the partially

self-funded plan.
● 2020-2021

○ The rate decreased 7% along with a $50,000 refund due to low costs in the partially
self-funded plan.

While continuing our service with Cigna, I am recommending that we also continue with MetLife for
dental, vision and voluntary life coverage.  MetLife has quoted a rate freeze for the upcoming year along
with the following continued benefits:

● Metlife will continue using the online enrollment platform that we are currently accustomed to
using for all of our insurance plans.  This platform has been extremely valuable in streamlining
and simplifying our enrollment process for employees.

● MetLife will offer optional worksite benefits to all employees for hospital indemnity, critical
illness, and accidents.

Exhibit 15

http://www.bighollow.us


 Page 1 of 8 

 
 

 
Big Hollow School District 38 

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, Illinois 60041 
 
 

SALARY AND BENEFITS STUDY PROPOSAL 
June 29, 2021 

 

Proposal Contents 

INTRODUCTION LETTER.......................................................................................................................................... 2 

EDLS DATA ANALYSIS SERVICES ............................................................................................................................. 3 

SALARY AND BENEFITS STUDY OVERVIEW & COMPONENTS ............................................................................... 4 

General Comments ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

Data Sources ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Peer Groups ........................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Per Position Criteria ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

Disclaimers & Study Notes ................................................................................................................................. 5 

PROFILE OF OUR FIRM’S PARTNERS ...................................................................................................................... 6 

COSTS OF THE COMPENSATION STUDY................................................................................................................. 7 

SATISFACTION STATEMENT ................................................................................................................................... 7 

EDLS PROJECTS ....................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Strategic Planning ............................................................................................................................................... 8 

Administrator Searches ...................................................................................................................................... 8 

Data Services ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 

 
  

Exhibit 16



 Page 2 of 8 

 
 

INTRODUCTION LETTER 
 
Mr. Bob Gold 
Superintendent 
Big Hollow School District 
Via Email: bobgold@bighollow.us 
 
 
Dear Mr. Gold, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to present Educational Leadership Solutions as the firm to serve your district by 
completing a comprehensive salary and benefits study. On behalf of all three EdLS Partners, I am excited to share the 
parameters for completing this study. 
 
Educational Leadership Solutions is a firm that uses research-based practices and data-driven processes, combined with 
our education-based experiences to match your desired outcomes. This study, which incorporates data from multiple 
sources, will provide the best available data and reports with statistics that will enable you to make decisions and 
recommendations based on data from your district, data from your chosen peers (lookalike peers), and districts in your 
geographic area. 
 
The information in this proposal includes background information about EdLS data analysis services, the components 
that will be a part of this study, bios for the EdLS Partners, costs for completing this study, our satisfaction statement, 
and several current and past EdLS projects that have been completed or are ongoing. 
 
While I attempted to provide enough information for you to finalize your decision to move forward with the proposed 
salary and benefits study, please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have questions or if you need additional 
information. I would enjoy the opportunity to answer questions about the contents of this proposal or to discuss further 
ideas for meeting your expected outcomes. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you regarding the next steps in this salary and benefits study process. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Don White, Ph.D. 
  

Exhibit 16

mailto:bobgold@bighollow.us


 Page 3 of 8 

 
 

 

EDLS DATA ANALYSIS SERVICES 
 
Educational Leadership Solutions offers data analysis for student academic achievement, school finances, and peer 
comparison purposes. Educational Leadership Solutions can assist with comprehensive analyses of district and school 
level data to determine how your district compares to regional, county, and similar peer groups on data from the Illinois 
Report Card or the district’s preferred data set, assuming the data set is readily available. 
 
Educational Leadership Solutions supports superintendents and district level administrators in the development of data 
systems that are aligned to the district’s strategic plan. This is a logical next step after completing a new strategic plan or 
whenever the district is seeking to implement strategic data-driven decision making. This EdLS service focuses on the use 
of systems and research-based best practices that lead to aligned, purposeful leadership in response to student 
achievement and strategic plan goals, while remaining sensitive to the capacity and holistic needs of students and 
employees. 
 
EdLS can assist the district with the design, administration, and analysis of surveys to help the district identify data-
driven systemic initiatives. These surveys can include but are not limited to tools designed to determine the district’s 
data climate with a goal of moving the district forward on the continuum of data adverse to data driven, surveys that 
measure support for and/or understanding of district initiatives, and surveys that assist the district with the 
identification of needed professional development. If desired, EdLS can also offer a related Administrator Academy 
(AA#3718) that was developed by Dr. Don White in collaboration with the Illinois Association of School Administrators. 
 
Educational Leadership Solutions also provides comprehensive salary and benefits comparisons by position so that the 
district can determine regional salary offers that are competitive while being sensitive to local parameters. These 
services can also include providing assistance with the selection of regional and state-wide peers that are customized to 
match the district’s desired comparisons. 
 
 
 
  

Exhibit 16

https://www.donwhite.cc/index.php/aa3718
https://web.cvent.com/event/a517dc37-24b6-43a6-bc4d-bbc4ab32b2bc/summary?rp=00000000-0000-0000-0000-000000000000


 Page 4 of 8 

 
 

 

SALARY AND BENEFITS STUDY OVERVIEW & COMPONENTS 
 
Dr. Gary Zabilka shared information with Mr. Bob Gold about EdLS providing a salary and benefits study. On June 28, 
2021, Dr. Don White spoke with Mr. Gold to learn more about his desires and the possible components to be considered 
as part of the final project. Based on this conversation and information provided by Mr. Gold, EdLS will conduct a salary 
and benefits study as outlined here. 
 
General Comments 

• Big Hollow School District 38 has a desire for EdLS to submit a salary and benefits analysis that includes the 
following positions. 
o Administrative Assistants 
o Paraprofessionals 
o Maintenance Employees 
o Custodians 

o Food Service Employees 
o Principals 
o Directors 

 

 
 

• The desired completion of this study is mid-August 2021. 
 
Data Sources 

• The data used to complete this study will be from multiple sources: 
o FY20 Illinois State Board of Education Salary Study (TRS Employees) 
o FY21 Non-Certified Employee Salary Study 
o 2021 Large Unit District Association (LUDA) Salary Study 

 
Peer Groups 

• The Peer Districts selected for this study will be from two categories: 
o Geographic Peers 
 All Districts with available data and within a 30-mile distance from the Big Hollow School District will 

be included in final report. 
o Lookalike Peers 
 The final number of lookalike peers will be based on available data for districts identified using these 

variables. Please note that the ranges provided below may be altered depending on the identified 
number of districts. The source of this data is the 2020 Illinois State Board of Education School 
Report Card data set. The final selection criteria will be provided in the final report. 

o District Enrollment = 1,200 to 3,000 (D38 = 1,788) 
o Total Per Pupil Expenditure = $9,000 to $13,000 (D38 FY20 = $10,253) 
o Instructional Expenditure Per Student = $5,000 to $8,000 (D38 FY20 = $5,784) 
o District Low Income % = 20% to 40% (D38 FY20 = 28.3%) 

 
  

Exhibit 16



 Page 5 of 8 

Per Position Criteria 
• If data is available, the following fields will be included per position in the final report. 

o Base Salary 
 This will be reported as an annual salary or as a low and high hourly range when available. 
 If there are multiple positions in the district (e.g., principals, assistant principals, etc.), the average 

will be provided with the low and high range if individual salary information is available. 
 If possible, the number of work months and workdays will be considered in the final report. 

However, it may not be possible to include this level of detail based on available data. 
o Board Paid TRS / IMRF 
o Board Paid Health Insurance (This data may not be readily available for most positions.) 
o Sick Days per Year 
o Vacation Days per Year 
o Work Days per year 

 
Disclaimers & Study Notes 

• The most recently available data will be used to complete this salary and benefits study. The sources and data 
year will be provided in the final report. 

• The accuracy of the data used to complete this study is reliant on the data submitted by individual school 
districts. 

• If necessary, calculations may need to be completed to normalize some data. Notes will be provided if this is 
necessary. EdLS may need to discuss this with the District as the study progresses. 

• Although it is not expected to be necessary, the District agrees to provide necessary information/data that is 
requested by Dr. Don White. This may include but may not be limited to current salary and benefits for 
individual employees. 

 
  

Exhibit 16



 Page 6 of 8 

 
 

 

PROFILE OF OUR FIRM’S PARTNERS 
 

Dr. Richard Voltz has 48 years of educational experience, starting out as a high school teacher/coach, high 
school principal, unit district superintendent and Associate Director of the Illinois Association of School 
Administrators in charge of professional development and mentoring and coaching of Illinois 
superintendents. In addition, Dr. Voltz taught educational administration courses at Eastern Illinois 
University for 17 years as an Adjunct Professor. Dr. Voltz has been a determined advocate for the 

improvement of services for all students and he has provided professional development on timely topics to thousands of 
administrators and teachers. He has also been a member of numerous state level committees that have been 
responsible for the formation of education policy and practices. This extensive experience in the public education arena 
has resulted in Dr. Voltz being widely respected and known in all areas of Illinois. 
 

Dr. Don White worked as a public-school educator for thirty-three years. His positions included classroom 
teacher, principal, district office administrator, and superintendent. Prior to entering the field of education, 
Don served as an Assistant Manager for Walgreen’s Drug Stores in Champaign, IL. In addition to serving as a 
superintendent for nineteen years, Don has been involved in many state and national projects. His work 

includes serving as a Co-Chair for the Illinois Association of School Administrators (IASA) School for Advanced 
Leadership. As one of the three lead designers and trainers for the Illinois Leadership and Technology for Change (ITLC) 
out of Illinois State University, Don provided training for administrators that focused on best practices in school 
leadership, systems leadership, and data driven decision making. His efforts have resulted in two IASA Exemplary Service 
to Education Awards and he was recognized by IASA as a 2020 Superintendent of Distinction. Recently retired, Dr. 
White’s focus continues to be providing professional development for all levels of school leadership, serving as a Partner 
for Educational Leadership Solutions, and working as a consultant with Forecast 5 Analytics. 
 

Dr. Gary Zabilka is a seasoned educator with 42 years of experience as a teacher, assistant principal, 
principal, and superintendent. He retired from the superintendency of Morton Grove School District 70 (IL) 
and served as superintendent of Puffer-Hefty School District 69 in Downers Grove (IL), for a combined total 
of 13 years as a superintendent. He is currently a Field Service Director for the Illinois Association of School 
Administrators, responsible for coaching and mentoring new superintendents, as well as providing 

Professional Development in leadership for district administrators. He also taught educational administration courses for 
Loyola University, specializing in the areas of leadership and school finance. In 2012, Dr. Zabilka was named an Illinois 
Distinguished Superintendent. He has led or participated in over 50 executive searches.  He holds degrees from Western 
Illinois University, Northern Illinois University, and a Doctorate from Loyola University.  As one of the primary mentors of 
superintendents in the northern part of the state, Dr. Zabilka recognizes those key qualities and characteristics that 
make superintendents successful in their respective districts and has a deep understanding of administrative structures 
and district organization. 
 

A complete list of Associates can be viewed on the EdLS Website 
https://edls.info/index.php/associate 

  

Exhibit 16

https://edls.info/index.php/associate


 Page 7 of 8 

 
 

 

COSTS OF THE COMPENSATION STUDY 
 
The General Fee for completing the proposed salary study is $5,000. If EdLS is requested to travel to meet with District 
representatives as part of this study, additional expenses for travel will be invoiced to the District but will not exceed 
$500. 
 
If the District decides to proceed, Mr. Gold should confirm the District’s desire to have EdLS complete this salary and 
benefits study. This email should be sent to Dr. Don White (dwhite@edls.info) and should include: 

1. confirmation that EdLS should proceed with the proposed salary and benefits study, 
2. that the proposed criteria and information provided in this proposal meet the District’s desired outcomes, 
3. the necessary requirements that EdLS must fulfill for the District to approve payment (e.g., invoice submission) 

with 50% of the fee being paid when the proposal is approved and the remaining 50% being paid when the final 
compensation  study report is submitted to the District. 

 
 

SATISFACTION STATEMENT 
 
Educational Leadership Solutions is a firm that is committed to excellence, and it is for that reason that we will continue 
to work for the district until they are satisfied with the outcome of the salary and benefits study as outlined in this 
proposal. 

 
 

  

Exhibit 16

mailto:dwhite@edls.info


 Page 8 of 8 

 
 

 

EDLS PROJECTS 
Strategic Planning 

• East Prairie School District 73 – Strategic Planning (completed) 
• Grass Lake School District 36 – Strategic Planning (completed) 
• Grayslake CCSD 46 – Strategic Planning (completed) 
• Paris Union School District 95 – Strategic Planning (completed) 

 
Administrator Searches 

• Effingham CUSD 40 – Superintendent 
• North Shore Special Education District (NSSED) – Chief School Business Official (completed) 
• River Forest School District 90 – Director of Student Services (completed) 
• Sacred Heart School – Principal (completed) 
• School Association for Special Education (SASED) – Director of Business / Chief Financial Officer (completed) 

 
Data Services 

• DeKalb CUSD 428 Salary and Benefits Study 
• Paris Union School District 95 Negotiations Preparation Analysis 

 
Testimonial videos can be viewed on the EdLS Website 

https://edls.info/index.php/testimonials 
 
 

Exhibit 16

https://edls.info/index.php/testimonials


Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17



Page 1 of 6 

 

RESOLUTION TO GOVERNOR JB PRITZKER  

REQUESTING LOCAL CONTROL AND IMMEDIATE GUIDANCE FOR COVID-19 

MITIGATION MEASURES  

2021-2022 SCHOOL YEAR 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of BIG HOLLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 38 County of LAKE, 

State of Illinois, (“the Board”) has the responsibility to manage and operate the schools of said 

BIG HOLLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT 38 (“District”); and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois School Code, 105 ILCS 5/10-20 and 5/10-20.5, as amended (the “Code”), 

authorizes the Board to exercise all powers required for the maintenance, operation, and 

development of the District’s schools and adopt and enforce all necessary rules for the management 

and government of the District’s schools; and  

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, Illinois Governor JB Pritzker declared all counties in Illinois as 

disaster areas pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Emergency Management Act (20 ILCS 3305/7) 

and directed implementation of the State’s Emergency Operations Plan in response to the novel 

coronavirus (“COVID-19”); and 

  WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization characterized COVID-

19 as a pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the U.S. President declared a national state of emergency and 

Governor Pritzker ordered the closure of all public and private K-12 schools in Illinois in an effort 

to mitigate the spread of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2020, Governor JB Pritzker announced the Restore Illinois plan which 

addresses the public health approach to safely reopen the State; and 

 

Exhibit 18



Page 2 of 6 

 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2021, Governor Pritzker announced the State entered Phase 5 of the 

Restore Illinois Plan; and 

WHEREAS, Phase 5 of the Restore Illinois Plan allows business and venues to operate at full 

capacity and resume normal operations; and  

WHEREAS, the Illinois State Board of Education (“ISBE”) and Illinois Department of Public 

Health (“IDPH”) have not issued guidance under Phase 5 for the 2021-2022 school year; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is requesting the Governor, ISBE, and IDPH to allow School Boards local 

control and discretion for COVID-19 mitigation measures consistent with Phase 5 guidance for 

other businesses and venues; and  

WHEREAS, Phase 5 guidelines for businesses and venues, including public spaces and 

municipalities, contain the following recommendations:  

1. Vaccinated individuals are not required to wear face coverings or maintain six feet social 

distancing indoors or outdoors.  

2. It is recommended that unvaccinated individuals should continue to wear face coverings 

and socially distance, but does not mandate either mitigation measure.  

3.  When youths are present, both indoors and outdoors, it is recommended that unvaccinated 

individuals should wear a face covering in a crowded setting, but face coverings are not mandated 

under such circumstances.  

4. All individuals, including fully vaccinated persons, must continue to wear a mask in the 

following limited circumstances and settings in accordance with CDC guidance: (1) on public 

transportation, (2) in congregate facilities, (3) in health care settings, and (4) where required by 

Exhibit 18



Page 3 of 6 

 

federal, state, local, tribal, or territorial laws, rules, and regulations, including local business and 

workplace guidance, which guidance does not currently list schools.  

5. Social distancing should be supported to the extent possible, especially in indoor settings. 

6. There are no spectator limitations nor mask mandates for indoor or outdoor sports.  

WHEREAS, the All Sports Policy, dated June 11, 2021, pertaining to all youth recreational sports, 

including school-based sports, states the following:  

1. Fully vaccinated individuals are not required to wear a mask or maintain physical 

distancing during sports-related activities for all sports.  

2. Unvaccinated individuals should continue to wear a mask during sports-related activities 

for indoor sports, but it is not mandated.  

3. Unvaccinated individuals are not required to wear a mask during outdoor sports-related 

activities.  

WHEREAS, the current guidance from the State, ISBE, and IDPH require more stringent 

restrictions and mitigation measures than all other venues, businesses, and spaces in the State, 

including public venues; and  

 WHEREAS, a mask mandate is inherently inconsistent with the State’s Phase 5 guidance and the 

All Sports Policy, because, for example, school age children can attend a sporting event, private 

concert, or go to a restaurant with no mask or social distancing requirements; and  

WHEREAS, 28 states have removed mask mandates for schools and will allow local school 

boards discretion regarding masking policies; and 

WHEREAS, a State mask mandate for schools would not be tailored to the specific needs of each 

school district and region; and 

Exhibit 18



Page 4 of 6 

 

WHEREAS, a Statewide mask mandate for schools would not be based on science and is 

inconsistent with Illinois Phase 5 guidance for all other venues and gatherings in the State; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 mitigation measures, including masking policies, should be determined 

by local school boards and superintendents, in consultation with local public health departments; 

and 

WHEREAS, School Boards need immediate guidance from the State to prepare for the upcoming 

2021-2022 school year.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Hereby Resolved by the Board of Education of Big Hollow School 

District 38, County of Lake, Illinois as follows: 

Section 1.  The preamble recitals of this Resolution are adopted and incorporated herein by this 

reference and found to be true and accurate statements. 

 Section 2.  The Board requests the State, ISBE, and IDPH to immediately issue guidance to schools 

that include the following components:  

a. Decisions regarding implementation of COVID-19 mitigation measures, including use of 

face coverings and social distancing practices, are to be developed and implemented at the 

exclusive discretion of local school boards and superintendents, in consultation with local public 

health departments, based on local geographical and student and staff COVID-19 vaccination and 

transmission data.  

b. Decisions regarding COVID-19 mitigation measures and whether to host events outside of 

school, such as open houses, registration, prom, graduation ceremonies, and other extracurricular 

events, shall remain at the exclusive discretion of local school boards and superintendents, in 

consultation with local public health departments. 

Exhibit 18



Page 5 of 6 

 

c. Aspirational goals for social distancing for in-person learning will remain at 3 ft for 

students and fully vaccinated staff to the greatest extent possible but is not mandated. 

Extracurricular activities and athletics should follow existing guidance from IDPH and athletic 

associations overseeing District athletic events.. 

d. In the event of a rise in positive COVID-19 cases in a local community, school boards and 

superintendents, in consultation with local public health departments, will utilize community based 

student and staff data to implement appropriate layered mitigation strategies, including the 

following measures as may be deemed necessary from time to time:  

1. Contact Tracing 

2. BinaxNow or Shield Testing 

3. Hosting vaccination clinics 

4. Masking requirements 

5. One-way hallways and social distancing strategies 

6. Additional Cleaning 

7. Air quality/ventilation improvements 

Such mitigation measures will be implemented based on local community need and are not State 

mandates.  

 Section 3.  The Board requests the State, ISBE, and IDPH to declare and recognize that COVID-

19 mitigation measures are subject to local school board discretion, to remove all COVID-19 

mandates in place for school districts, and to align school guidance with Phase 5 guidance for all 

other venues, businesses, gatherings, and events.  

 Section 4.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Exhibit 18



Page 6 of 6 

 

 Ayes_______________________ 

 Nays_______________________ 

 Absent_____________________ 

 

 This resolution is adopted this ______ day of July, 2021. 

       

      ____________________________________ 

      President, Board of Education 

 

 

Attest:________________________________________________ 

            Secretary, Board of Education 

       

         

Exhibit 18



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Board of Education
Administrator Report

July 12, 2021
1.  Good Things Happening for Kids:
Students prep and lead an “Interview with the Interim Principal”- M
Student schedules are going through the QC process before they are finalized and prepped to be
mailed home by the end of the month- M
Main classroom schedules are created and feedback is being sought from specials teachers and
classroom teachers - P
Master schedule & class lists completed and distributed to staff.-E
Getting to Know You sessions provided for incoming kindergarten students and families- P
Building tours offered - P
Kindergarten Camp scheduled for August 12 - P
Summer school offered and implemented-P, E, M
EL Summer school offered and will begin July 19 - P,E,M

2.  Good Things Happening for Staff:
Eight English Language Arts teachers worked with the Center for Talent Development through
Northwestern to learn about our new Accelerated ELA curriculum- M
June communication from BH Principals- P, E,M
Classroom schedules completed with input from teaching staff.  All distributed to staff prior to
end of school year.-E
Building & district administration volunteered at the Grant HS Vaccine Pod - P,E,M
Staff have volunteered to continue curriculum work this summer - P,E,M
Building Leadership Team reading The Advantage by Patrick Lencioni on the advantages of
Organizational Health. This is preparation for a two day Building Leadership Retreat to be held
in August.-E
Participation in Interview process to fill open third grade and EL positions.-E
Mentors selected from applications and assigned to 3 new teachers-E
Kindergarten position filled with internal candidate following established interview process - P
PreK position filled following established interview process - P
Robust professional development plans being made for the 2021-22 school year

3.  General Information to Share:
Title IX training held for administrators on June 10
Title IX investigation training for administrators scheduled for August 12
Plans being created for institute days on August 18, 19, 20
Interviewing for highly qualified and dynamic team members continue throughout the district-
P,E,M
Development of 2021-2022 School Improvement Plans are underway- P,E,M
Meet & Greet the Interim Principal started June 28th/29th and will continue: 7/17& 7/18, 8/2 &
8/3- M
Meet & Greet for students PreK - grade 4 will be held on Thursday, August 19 from 4-6 pm

Exhibit 20

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1jDn-suculJKmc8Xy1O4wSAYCf4IE4Jhvw-K-vxHxxN8/edit?usp=sharing


PLC Meeting Agenda / Action Record 

 

Team:  Administration   Date:  June 16, 2021    Time: 12:00 p.m. 

Team Members Present 
Vicki 
Michelle 
Erin 
Matt 
Vinni 
Bob 
 
Absent: 
Christine 
Lenayn  
 

Norm 
Take an inquiry stance 

Assume positive intentions 

Stick to protocol (task at hand) 

Be here now 

Ground statements in evidence 

Start and end on time 

Adhere to team decisions 

 

Roles:  
Facilitator (be sure to review norms- 5 mins):  Bob     Recorder:  Michelle 
 
Time Keeper:                                                                 Other: Normkeeper: Erin 

 

Time 
allocations: 
 

 

 
 
 

Purpose / Goal(s) for this meeting: 
 

● Life-share 

● Follow-up from recent Board meeting (15 min) 

● Follow-up from recent meeting with union leadership (15 min) 

● Program model update from Northwestern 12:45 pm (20 min) 

o Please see program model proposal update here. 

 

● Update from LCHD/ISBE/IDPH (15 min) 

o ISBE resolution summary 

o Resolution Q&A 

o Interim testing guidance 

o How recent sports guidance may impact future guidance for 

instruction? 

o Offices...as long as students/parents are not present we can follow 

regular Phase 5 guidance 

o Board meetings, we can follow Phase 5 guidance unless students are 

present. 

● Crisis Management Planning Update--- Draft (20 min) 

o Alertus drills 

● Director/Principal updates (20 min) 

Exhibit 21

https://meet.google.com/dsd-mqem-waj
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yB86hNjyL9qi1Iq2RJtA9Qp6YaySii2I/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jpPlZOWS0aZikUxOJZstM5xW2IOj1Iz5/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1J-6oShB2v9_0NEvR1u26tsfMyJE_NlQG/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bAv9gHodhVQum5JUZsRxfTmhtEmJCtqT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1s7eJhwPjHKP9BbZx57uLTXDCDRR3mGa8/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/10bcKCZDCQ9zQ0ZMkKJrBQz3ScHVcBUAwjKv8FNZvSmw/edit?usp=sharing


o Tentative assignments/vacancies- for paraprofessionals (Erin will send 

a spreadsheet) 

▪ MS- 1 (hired 1 already) 

▪ Elem- 3 (not including Title 1 para) 

▪ Primary- 4 

o SOPPA Update 

o New Hires Procedure 

o Board Meeting Request 

● Budget update (10 min) 

● Support staff compensation (10 min) 

● Promotion/advertisement of current vacancies (5 min) 

● Discussion on pending vacancies (5 min)  

 

 
Other : Daily Certification at each building? 

 

  
 

Discussions / Decision Summary: 
 
 

 

What follow-up is needed based on the information shared at this meeting? 

Action Steps:  

- Please read through crisis management 

planning document and make comments 

- Please read through Northwestern 

program model document and ask 

questions if you have them (send to 

Michelle) 

- Review the SOPPA link and let Matt 

know if anything is missing 

Person Responsible: 

- All Admin 

Agenda for Next Meeting: 

-  

 

Data to collect and bring to next meeting: 

-  

 

Reflection of Norms 

-  

Date/Time of next meeting:  

-  

 

 

Exhibit 21

https://bighollow.app.learnplatform.com/new/public

	1-June 14 2021 Open Meeting Minutes.docx (1)
	2-June 2021 Treasurer Report (1)
	3-AP Bills June (1)
	4-June Activity Convenience (1)
	5-Payroll Report June 2021 (1)
	6-CDP 2021 (1)
	7-Insurance committee agenda and report (1)
	8-End of Year Budget Summary June 30, 2021 - Sheet1 (1) (2)
	9-Energy report for Board 7_12_21 (3) (1)
	10-Strategic Action Plan -- Executive Summary (1) (1)
	11-Board Memo (ESSER III) (1)
	12-TIF district proposal (1)
	13- Legal Update _ Legislation (1)
	14-June 2021 Employment Report (1)
	15-Health insurance recommendation letter 2021-2022.docx (1)
	16-Salary Study quote (1)
	PROPOSAL CONTENTS
	INTRODUCTION LETTER
	EDLS DATA ANALYSIS SERVICES
	SALARY AND BENEFITS STUDY OVERVIEW & COMPONENTS
	General Comments
	Data Sources
	Peer Groups
	Per Position Criteria
	Disclaimers & Study Notes

	PROFILE OF OUR FIRM’S PARTNERS
	COSTS OF THE COMPENSATION STUDY
	SATISFACTION STATEMENT
	EDLS PROJECTS
	Strategic Planning
	Administrator Searches
	Data Services


	17-SHIELD
	18-Resolution to Governor for Local Control of COVID-19 Mitigation Measures.DRAFT.July 2.2021 (1)
	19-FOIA 7.7.21 (1)
	20-BoE Admin Report 2021-22 (1)
	21-Admin meeting June 16, 2021 (1) (1)



